NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Thursday., February 23. 2006

9:00 a.m. — Advisory Committee Meeting
11:00 a.m. — Watermaster Board Meeting

(Lunch will be served)

AT THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER OFFICES
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730
(909) 484-3888




February 23, 2006

9:00 a.m. - Advisory Committee Meeting

11:00 a.m. - Watermaster Board Meeting

(Lunch will be served)




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
9:00 a.m. — February 23, 2006
At The Offices Of
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 81730

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

R

il

CONSENT CALENDAR

Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form tisted below. There will be no
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate
action.

A. MINUTES
1. Minutes of the Annual Advisory Committee Meeting held January 26, 20086 (Page 1)
2. Minutes of the Advisory and Watermaster Board Conference call held January 30, 2006
{Page 9)

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of December 2005 (Page 21)
2. Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Period
July 1, 2005 through November 30, 2005 (Page 25)

3. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period November 1, 2005 through November
30, 2005 (Page 27)

4. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July throtgh November 2005 (Page 28)

5. Cash Disbursements for the month of January 20086 {Page 31)

6. Combining Scheduie of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capilal for the Period

July 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005 (Page 35)

7. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December 1, 2005 through December
31, 2005 (Page 37)

8. Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July through December 2005 (Page 39)

C. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
Receive and File the Annual Audited Financial Staternenis for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005
{Page 41}

BUSINESS ITEMS

REPORTS/UPDATES

A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. Altorney Manager Process/Discussion of Peace il Agreement
2. Court Hearing Update



Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda February 23, 2006

B. WATERMASTER ENGINEERING CONSULTANT REPORT
1. Ewvaluation of the Cumulative Effects of Transfers Pursuant to the Peace Agreement
(Page 63)
2. Hydraulic Control Update

C. CEQ/STAFF REPORT
1. 85/15 Update
2.  Volume Vote Update
3. Department of Water Resources Grant Financing Update
4. San Diego County Water Authority RFP for Groundwater Conjunctive Use Project

D. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

MWD Status Report — Richard Atwater

Recycled Water Implementation Schedule — Richard Atwater
Water-Energy NEXUS “Caleep” Study - Martha Davis
Monthly Water Conservation Programs Report (Page 75)
Groundwater Operations Recharge Summary (Page 79
Monthly Imported Water Deliveries Report (Page 81)
State/Federal Legislation Reports (Page 83)

Public Relations Report (Page 105)

NI O RN

E. OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS

IV. INFORMATION
1. Newspaper Articles (Page 107)

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
Vi. OTHER BUSINESS

Vii. EUTURE MEETINGS

February 23, 2006 9:00 am.  Advisory Committee Meeting

February 23, 2006 11:.00a.m. Watermaster Board Meeting

March 9, 2006 9:00 a.m,  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricuitural Pool Meeting
March 21, 2006 9:00 am.  Agricultural Poo! Meeting @ IEUA

March 23, 2006 9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee Meeting

March 23, 2006 11:00 a.m,  Watermaster Board Meeting

Meeting Adjourn



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING
11:00 a.m. — February 23, 2006
At The Offices Of
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER

. CONSENT CALENDAR
Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversiat and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate

action.

A, MINUTES

1,
2.

Minutes of the Annual Watermaster Board Meeting held January 26, 2006 (Page 11)
Minutes of the Advisory and Watermaster Board Conference call held January 30, 2006
(Page 19)

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS

1.
2.

w

el S ke

8.

Cash Disbursements for the month of December 2005 (Page 21)

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capitai for the Period
July 1, 2005 through November 30, 2005 (Page 25)

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period November 1, 2005 through November
30, 2005 (Page 27)

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July through November 2005 (Page 29}

Cash Disbursements for the month of January 2006 (Page 31)

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital for the Period
July 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005 (Page 35}

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December 1, 2005 through December
31, 2005 (Page 37)

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July through December 2005 (Page 39)

C. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
Receive and File the Annual Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005
{Page 41)

. BUSINESS ITEMS

. REPORTSMPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT

1.
2.

Attorney Manager Process/Discussion of Peace il Agreement
Court Hearing Update



Watermaster Board Meeting Agenda February 23, 2006

B. WATERMASTER ENGINEERING CONSULTANT REPORT
1. Evaluation of the Cumulative Effects of Transfers Pursuant to the Peace Agreement
(Page 63)
2. Hydraulic Control Update

C. CEOQ/STAFF REPORT
1. 85M5 Update
2.  Volume Vote Update
3. Department of Water Resources Grant Financing Update
4. San Diego County Water Authority RFP for Groundwater Conjunctive Use Project

V. INEORMATION
1. Newspaper Articles (Page 107)

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
VI. OTHER BUSINESS
Vil. EUTURE MEETINGS

February 23, 2006 9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee Meeting
February 23, 2006 11:00 a.m.  Watermaster Board Meeting
March 9, 2006 9:00 a.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting
March 21, 2006 0:00 a.m.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA
March 23, 2006 .00 a.m.  Advisory Commitiee Meeting
March 23, 2006 11:00 aam.  Watermaster Board Meeting
Meeting Adjourn




. CONSENT CALENDAR

A, MINUTES

1. Annual Advisory Committee Meeting —
January 26, 2006

2. Advisory and Watermaster Board
Conference call — January 30, 2006




Draft Minutes
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ANNUAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
January 26, 2006

The Annual Advisory Commitee meeting was held at the offices of the Chino Basin Watermaster, 9641
San Bernardine Road, Rancho Cucamonga, California, on January 26, 2006 at 9:00 a.m.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Agricultural Fool

Nathan deBoom, 2006 Chair Milk Producers Counsel

Bob Feenstra Ag Pool/Dairy

Jeif Pierson Ag PoolfCrops

Appropriative Pool

Ken Jeske City of Ontario

Robert Del.oach Cucamonga Valley Water District
Rich Atwater Inland Empire Utllities Agency
Gerald J. Black Fontana Union Water Company
Mike McGraw Fontana Water Company
Rosemary Hoerning City of Upland

Dave Crosley City of Chino

Raul Garibay City of Pomona

Mike Maestas City of Chino Hilis

Eunice Ulloa Chino Basin Water Conservation District
J. Amold Rodriguez Santa Ana River Water Company
Mark Kinsey Monte Vista Water District
Charles Moorrees Santa Ana Water Company

Bill Stafford Marygotd Mutua! Water Company
Non-Agricultural Pool

Justin Scott-Coe Vulcan Materials Company (Calmat Division)
Watermaster Board Members Present

Ken Willis West End Consolidated Water Company
Watermaster Staff Present

Kenneth R. Manning Chief Executive Officer

Gordon Treweek Project Engineer

Danielle Maurizio Senior Engineer

Sherri Lynne Motino Recording Secretary
Watermaster Consultants Present

Scott Slater Hatch & Parent

Michael Fife Hatch & Parent

Mark Wildermuth Wildermuth Environmental Inc.

Others Present

Bill Kruger City of Chino Hilis

Terry Catlin Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Justin Brokaw Marygold Mutual Water Company
Dean Martin Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Henry Pepper City of Pomona

Paul Deutsch Geomatrix/GE

Chris Diggs Fontana Water Company



|

Minutes Annual Advisory Committee Meeting January 26, 2006

Steven G. Lee Ag Pool L.egal Counsel
Martha Davis Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Rick Rees California CIM/DOS

The Advisory Commiiitee meeting was called to order by Chair deBoom at 9:00 a.m.

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER
There were no additions or reorders made to the agenda.

I-

ik

Nathan deBoom Chair (Agricultural Poot)

Ken Jeske Vice-Chair {Appropriative Pool)

Bob Bowcock Second Vice-Chair {Non-Agricultural Pool}
Ken Manning Secretary/Treasurer  {Chief Executive Officer)
CONSENT CALENDAR

A, MINUTES

1. Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held December 15, 2005

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER INVESTMENT POLICY
Resolution 06-01 - Resolution of the Chino Basin Watermaster, San Bernardino County,
California, re-authorizing the Watermaster's Investment Policy

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
Resolution 06-02 — Resolution Authorizing investment of Monies in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF)

ASSESSMENTS
Resolution 06-03 - Resolution of the Chino Basin Watermaster Levying Replenishment and
Administrative Assessments for Fiscal Year 2005-2006

NOTICE OF INTENT
Annual Filing of Notice of Intent Regarding the Determination of Operating Safe Yield

Motion by Del.oach, second by Black, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve Consent Calendar items A through E, as presented

BUSINESS ITEMS

A

PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CHINO
BASIN FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Mr. Manning stated Watermaster is in the process of working with our pariners in the
development of a number of improvements to the recharge facilities that have been improved
over the last few years. One item that is going to be looked at is the area of earthen berms, the
other area that we need assistance in is the area of Depariment of Safety of Dams in analyzing
how staff can work with Flood Control and the Department of Safety of Dams to make sure we
are maximizing the fength of the time the water stays within the basins. Staff is seeking lo hire a
consulitant to assist in these areas. The coniract presented is for $10,000 dollars and Mr.
Manning noted he has a limit to sign contracts up to $9,999.99. Mr. Manning stated even if this
was not over his signatory limit it is important to bring these types of items to the Advisory and
Watermaster Board for approval and understanding. Chair deBoom inquired as the length of
the service this contract will hold and it was noted it is an on-going contract. Staff is seeking
approval to forward this contract to the Board.

Motion by Del.oach, second by Garibay, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the proposal to secure a professional engineering support service
{Stantec) for the Chino Basin Facilities Improvement Project, as presented



Minutes Annual Advisory Commiltee Meeting January 26, 2006

B. BASIN OPERATIONS MANUAL

Mr. Manning stated the County Flood Contro! Depariment is looking for two things to occur
before they wili feel comfortable in relinquishing control of the basins during flood events and
during non-flood events. The Operations Manual is one of those two items, the other was the
introduction of operations of the SCADA system. The operations of SCADA are complete
enough for them to feel comfortable that we can operate the basins from remote locations and
not have a problem in a storm event. The Operations Manual is before the Advisory Committee
now and has gone through the Pools with unanimous support; however a request from the
Conservation District to change the motion that would be made to the Advisory Commitiee to
change to motion io a receive and file rather than approve. The reason for this change is that
they and we feel this is a document that will have a number of changes to it over the next few
years as we operate and use it — making it a fluid document. Since there are policy statements
contained in the Operations Manual, staff feels it important to review it periodically with the
Watermaster. A brief discussion ensued with regard to the manual and its review process,

Motion by Crosley, second by Del.oach, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve to Receive and File the Basin Operations Manual, as presented

C. MONTE VISTAWATER DISTRICT APPLICATION TO RECHARGE

Mr. Manning stated Watermaster received on November 1, 2005 an application from Monte
Vista Water District (MVWD) for recharging 3,500 acre-feet of State Water Project water into
four of their wells as in injection program. Staff understands this program that MVWD is
undertaking is consistent with the goals and objectives of Watermaster and because of the
application and the nature of it. If it is required that Watermaster perform analysis of material
physical injury. It was sent to Wildermuth Environmental for that analysis; the summary of that
analysis is included in the meeting packet. Wildermuth Environmental has come to the
conclusion that there is no material physical injury. Watermaster is excited about this
opportunity, it is a chance for staff to learn about the injection process and how it might be
applied elsewhere in the basin. Mr. Jeske inquired if this was partially covered financialiy by
grant money and district money and it was noted the financial aspect will be covered by both
grant and district monies. Mr. Jeske stated at the Appropriative Pool meeting there was a
discussion on this item regarding the permit options and noted it was supported at that meeting
and stated they were looking forward to seeing how the process works.

Motion by Jeske, second by Deloach, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the Monte Vista Water District’s application to recharge a
maximum of 3,500 acre-feet/yr of treated State Water Project water by injection at its
wells 1, 4, 30 and 32 subject to entering into an agreement with the Watermaster and
Inland Empire Utilities Agency whereby MVWD’s recharge would be covered in the
Watermaster/IEUA permit for the recharge of imported and recycled water and to
have the permitting process come through the Watermaster process, as presented

IV. BEPORIS/UPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT
1. Board Reappointment Motion
At the Watermaster Board meeting the original pleading for the reappointment of the nine
member board was approved with a small conditionality relating to the creation of a
Watermaster Governance Committee and was subseguently filed with the court. Counsel
Fife stated the Special Referee has filed a report of comments on Watermaster's motion for
reappointment which was filed two weeks prior. The Special Referee’s commenis are
available on the back table. Since this document was just received a few days ago,
Watermaster counsel has not had time to get formal direction from the Board as to how we
should respond to the report. In anticipation of the Watermaster Board meeting today,
counsel has started to draft a response and a copy of that draft response is on the back
table for review. Counsel has not received notice to draft this response and it was prepared




P

Minutes Annual Advisory Commitiee Meeting January 26, 2006

to begin discussions at the Board meeting today. This item will be discussed at the
Watermaster Board meeting today and if any party is interested in this item, they are
recommended to attend that meeting. It was asked if an extension of time to review the
Special Referee’'s comments is going to be filed due to time consiraints. Counsel Fife
stated an extension has not been filed and again noted council has not received input from
any parties on the approach to take. Proposing more time is an alternate suggestion that
will be presented to the Board as opposed to filing the draft response in haste. Mr. Jeske
stated what is contained in the Special Referee's Report are not new topics, they are fopics
which have been discussed over the last period of ten years, so for the record, to get a
report within a matter of days of a scheduled court hearing from the Special Referee with a
four day turn-around time for comment and it is a highly inappropriate action by a Special
Referee. Mr. Jeske noted he suggests that his comment be injected into the response filed
with the court and strongly supports asking for more time to respond properly to the report.
Mr. DeLoach stated that he agrees with the statements made by Mr. Jeske and noted that
the Special Referee’'s comments requires a well thought out response. Mr. DeLoach stated
that based on the nature of the Special Referee's filing, we are really left with very few
options of how to respond. The Board may or may not be adequately equipped to respond
due to the two new board members being seated on the board today. As Mr. Jeske noted
the Special Referee has placed several new items that were not previously on the table and
agencies can only comment on what was wiitten in a separate motion to the court. Mr.
Deloach offered comment on the history of the appointing of the Special Referee. Mr.
Del.oach stated the Special Referees' report paints a bleak picture of the millions of dollars
that have been paid by every party to the Judgment to make the advances and
improvements that we have made to date. Cucamonga Valley Water District would like to
see, at a minimum, the Board request an extension of time to allow parties adequate time to
prepare a formal response. Mr. Jeske noted that our responses should present a level of
consistency and stated that he felt we ali live in the best managed water basin in the world.
A discussion ensued with regard to possible workshops and processes that will be created
by the Special Referee’s comments and requests. Counsel Fife stated that it sounds like
the unified message from the Advisory Committee to the Board is to ask the Board to
request more time to respond. It was noted by the committee members that assumption
was correct and that the comments stated today need to be forwarded to the Watermaster
Board this afternoon.

2. Peace |l Process

Counsel Fife stated counsel and Wildermuth Environmental continues to prepare the
responses to the questions that were put forward in the two workshops and it is anticipated
those responses will be complete shortly. After the responses are presented, it will be
decided what steps are needed in moving the process forward to completion. It was asked
if there is a time frame for incorporating the responses into the term sheet. Counsel Fife
stated the responses to the questions are to be presented within the next few weeks; after
that it will be a matter of checking in with the parties to decide what, if anything needs to be
done to the term sheet.

B. ENGINEERS REPORT

Mr. Manning noted the first item on the CEO/Staff Report section is the Engineers Report
section which will become a regular agendized item from now on. This will give our engineers a
chance to keep the parties up to date on technical activities. Mr. Wildermuth stated that he is
diligently working on the Peace il Technical Report which is formutated out of the questions and
comments received at the workshops, emails, and conversations. It is anticipated the report wili
be complete soon. Mr. Wildermuth stated that last summer Wildermuth Environmental
completed its analysis of the accumulative effect of fransfers and the balance of recharge and
discharge, which needs to be done every two years on odd years. This will be brought through
the Watermaster process for approval.



Minutes Annual Advisory Committee Meeting January 26, 2006

C. CEOI/STAFF REPORT

1.

Ontario International Airport Data Reguest

Mr. Manning offered comment on the history of the Ontario International Airports
Potentially Responsible Parties (PRP's) issue. In July, the Regional Water Quality Control
Board (RWQCB) sent six PRP's draft clean up and abatement orders on the Ontario
International Airport plume. There have been two subseguent meetings held with those
PRP's; the first meeting was an introduction meeting where information was shared about
the evidence that led those organizations to be at the table and the second meeting was to
discuss potential solutions. Staff was pleased with the PRP’s reactions at the meetings, it
was thought by discussions al the second meseting that the PRP’s had held individual
meetings prior to the main meeting. At the last meeting they did make a request to
Watermaster to supply them with data that the RWQCB and others were relying on that
would show that they were in fact responsible for the poliution. Much of that data was in
our agricultural well area which required special authorization from the Agricultural Pool to
seek well release information. Staff has not received 100% of the release cards to date,
however, enough were received in a wide enough area to move forward with the PRP’s
request of data. Mr. Jeske stated this will not be a short process in just looking at the time
lines for gathering information and meeting with the Regional Board; there will be plenty of
time to keep the Watermaster parties apprised of the happenings. Mr. Jeske inquired into
ihe well owners that refused to allow the release of data. Mr. Manning stated he would
need to go back to the Agricultural Pool for a request to release any data and noted that it
be best if Mr. Jeske spoke to chair deBoom directly. It was noted several wells are in
areas under consiruction presentiy.

Water Activity Update

Mr. Manning stated we have experienced one storm this season and alang with that storm
Watermaster is doing some recharge of State Water Project water off the Metropolitan
delivery system. Mr. Treweek noted last year was the first year that we had most CBFIF
facilities in place which recharged about 18,000 acre-feet of storm water and
approximately 12,000 acre-feet of imported water for a total around 30,000 acre-feet. This
year Watermaster set a goal of approximately 50,000 acre-feet consisting of 20,000 acre-
feet of storm water, 28,000 acre-feet of imported water, and 3,000 acre-feet of recycled
water: this is an ambitious goal. As for the six month report, approximately 1,000 acre-feet
of recycled water, 3,000 acre-feet of storm water, and 16,000 acre-feet of imported water
for a total of approximately 20,000 acre-feet has been recharged within the first six months
of this year. We are looking to capture over the remaining six months about 30,000 acre-
feet; a good portion of that amount will be imported water unless the storms pick up.
Mr. Manning stated during the next several months staff will keep the parties apprised of
all water activities. It was noted that it would be helpful that when staff is discussing water
activity that it be made known which basins are receiving the water.

D. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

1.

MWD Status Report — Richard Atwater

Mr. Atwater stated ihere is good news with regards {o the Rialto Pipeline emergency
interconnects with the San Gabriel Vailey Municipal Water Districts — Inland Empire
Utilities Agency (IEUA) is on schedule with the agreements. IEUA will be working with
several parties on the design and construction of those connections. With regard to the
Rialto Pipeline, Metropoiitan is in the process of procuring 96" isolation valves — there is a
long lead time for those.

On February 14, 2006 the Mefropolitan Board will be holding a public hearing on a rate
increase — this increase will not affect the Chino Basin area.  Mr. Atwater stated that
included in the meeting packet is the IEUA December news letier on the Chino Basin
Facilities Improvement Project and noted that aimost all the work on the Phase | has been
completed. Mr. Manning noted that in February staff will be having a discussion to go over
the items that are included in the Phase Hl improvements.




Minutes Annual Advisory Commitiee Meeting January 26, 2008

2.  Recycled Water Status Report — Rich Atwater

Mr. Atwater stated the goal for recycled waler for the fiscal year will be about 3,000 acre-
feet of recharge. In about a month or so we will start to recharge recycled water in the
Turner Basin. In working with the county we would like to have more basins accessible for
recharge. This figure will be more than doubled next year once all the improvements have
been made. Overall with regard to recycled water from July through December IEUA has
delivered about 6,500 acre-feet of recycled water which is what was done for all of last
year; there are some new users being hooked up this spring. The expectation for this year
is approximately 14,000 acre-feet of recycled water and then next year will we wili exceed
to serve 20,000 acre-feet.

3.  Water Bond Update — Martha Davis

Mr. Atwater spoke briefly on the water bond issue and noted the update for this issue was
made available in the meeting packet. Mr. Atwater noted an important point on this issue
is the water bond package which included a water fee or water tax and wants Southern
California to speak with one voice regarding this issue. A meeting regarding this is
scheduled at IEUA next week and Mr. Atwater welcomes all interested parties to attend
and to be involved. We need to work together and have a common message on this
issue. In speaking with Mr. Manning we have asked our legislative parties to organize a
legislative briefing for our members of the legislature on February 16, 2006 - any and all
are invited to participate in that meeting. It will be an informative meeting to give our
perspective of that component of infrastructure on water and how it could affect our area.
It is also a good time to discuss the great things that are happening in the Chino Basin.

4.  Monthly Water Conseryation Programs Report
No comment was made regarding this item,

5. Quarterly Planning and Water Resources Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

6. Chino Basin Facllities Improvement Project Report
No comment was made regarding this itemn.

7. State/Federal Legislation Reports
No comment was made regarding this item.

8. Public Relations Report
No comment was made regarding this item.

E. OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS

No comment was made regarding this item.

V. INEORMATION

1.

Newspaper Articles
No comment was made regarding this itemn.

NWRA Election Results
No comment was made regarding this ltem.

AGWA Hvdrologic, Environmental and Legislative Challenges to Southern California's Present
and Future Managed Aquifer Recharae Programs Monday, February 6, 2006
No comment was made regarding this item.

Inteqgrated Resource Management Business Disclosure
No comment was made regarding this item.




Minutes Annual Advisory Committee Meeting

Vi

Vi

VL

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

No comment was made regarding this item.

MZ1 Technical Committee Meeting
Annual Advisory Committee Meeting
Annual Watermaster Board Meeting

Joint Appropriative & Non-Ag Pool Meeting
Agricultural Pool Meeting @ |IEUA
Advisory Committee Meeting

OTHER BUSINESS

No comment was made regarding this item.
EUTURE MEETINGS

January 25, 2006 1:00 p.m.
January 26, 2006 9:00 a.m.
January 26, 2006 11:00 a.m.
February 9, 2006 9:.00 a.m.
February 21, 2006 8:.00 a.m.
February 23, 2006 9:00 a.m.
February 23, 2006 11:00 a.m.

Watermaster Board Meeting

The Annual Advisory Committee Meeting Adjourned at 9:55 a.m.

Minutes Approved:

Secretary:

January 26, 2006




QD

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION




Draft Minutes
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ADVISORY COMMITTEE & WATERMASTER BOARD CONFERENCE CALL
January 30, 2006

The Watermaster Board conference call took place on January 30, 2006 at 8:00 a.m.

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS ON THE CALL

Ken Willis, Chair
Sandra Rose

Bob Kuhn

Bob Bowcock

Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel

Watermaster Staff On the Call
Kenneth R. Manning

Sheri Rojo

Sherri Lynne Molino

Watermaster Consultants On the Call

Scott Siater
Michael Fife
Mark Wildermuth

Others Present On the Call
Ken Jeske

Justin Brokaw

Jill Willis

J. Arnold Rodriguez

Robert Del.oach

Mike Maestas

Mark Kinsey

Raul Garibay

Tom Bunn

City of Upland

Monte Vista Water District

Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Vulcan Materials Company
Agricuttural Pool, Dairy

Chief Executive Officer
C.F.O/Assistant G.M.
Recording Secretary

Hatch & Parent
Hatch & Parent
Wildermuth Environmental Inc.

City of Ontario

Marygold Mutual Water Company

Attorney for Cucamonga Valley WD

Santa Ana River Water Company
Cucamonga Valley Water District

City of Chino Hills

Monte Vista Water District

City of Pomona

Lagerioff, Senecal, Bradley, Gosney & Kruse

The Watermaster Board Conference call began at 8:00 a.m.

It was asked if all parties on the conference call had a copy of the latest pleading and it was noted all
parties had received a copy. After some discussion it was noted there appears to be four goals that need
to be accomplished in the response; 1) correct any misconception that the motion for reappointment is for
a five year term and not a two year term, 2) clearly state all parties are asking for the reappointment of the
nine member board, 3) suggest we are very capable of making and carrying out decisions, and 4) parties
want to avoid any unnecessary workshops. A discussion ensued with regard to the Special Referee’s
request for a workshop in three months and again in six months. Counsel Slater stated this needs to be a
Watermaster Board discussion and that the Watermaster is capable of digesting data; workshops are not
always needed to be heard. This needs o be an open process and counsel needs to get to court and
make our case to the judge. A discussion ensued with regard to why the Special Referee responded the
way she did. It was noted that we need to focus on the next increment of five years instead of focusing on
our failure to come to closure. 1t was noted that by the tone of the Special Referee's response that she
has been provided sanitized views of what we are doing and the progress we are making. Counsel Slater
stated he believes she wants to see a resolution and a conclusion. A discussion regarding the five year
term misconception ensued. Counsel stated that will be corrected and the judge will understand we are



Minutes Advisory & WM Board Conference Call January 30, 2006

asking for a five year reappoiniment. Ms. Rose stated she would find a workshop very beneficial since
she is new to the topics at hand. Counsel Slater identified the difference between an open workshop and
a Special Referee and noted Watermaster is capable of holding informative individual workshops at which
we could leave an open invitation for the Special Referee to attend. Mr. Kuhn stated he is hoping for an
open workshop because when it is recorded it really puts off open and honest conversation and
statements. Mr. Willis inquired to Ms. Rose if she had an opportunity to have a sit down with the
Watermaster staff and Ms. Rose stated that she in deed has met with staff. It was noted that
Watermaster can hold a workshop in a formal or an informal setting and invite the Special Referee to sit
in. Mr. Vanden Heuvel inquired if we hold workshops do we still need to go to court and it was noted that
answer was unknown. Mr. Jeske stated he is also in favor of a more informal workshop.

Motion by Kuhn, second by Willls, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the pleading as presented to the court and a willingness to hold
as many workshops as needed. A six month report will be formally given to the
court on progresses.

A discussion regarding the six monlh report ensued. Counsel Slater noted we can hold as many
workshops as we want and that we do not have to hold a formal workshop; however, this report was due
to the court in September 2005 and we will need to ask for a continuance consistent with the Special
Referee's recommendations. Mr. Manning stated we are going to send a message that we are going to
be responsive and that we are seeking court approval. Mr. Vanden Heuvel spoke on the Peace 1l process
and noted he felt the Special Referee’s comments were not a negative and his hopes are that we can
have a single voice to present to the judge because we are not unified at this moment in time. The time
frame for the Peace |l process was discussed. A discussion ensued with regard to page 8 and it was
noted that page needs to be polished. It was noted that the other changes that were discussed would be
clarified in the document prior to the court time today.

Motion by Kuhn, second by Vanden Heuvel, and by unanimous vole
Moved to approve the pleading with the changes that was discussed to the court and
a willingness to hold as many workshops as needed and have more informal
communication with the Special Referee with a court hearing date for finalization in
July 26086.

A question regarding Judge Gunn ensued and it was noted there is a possibility that he will not continue as
our judge. A discussion ensued with regard to the current Special Referee guiding the new judge and it
was decided that this item needs to be agendized for the Watermaster Board in its entirety to discuss this
issue. Counsel Slater stated a presentation as to the role of Watermaster and the referee could be given
at a board meeting. With no further comments received.

The Watermaster Board Conference Call ended at 8:45 a.m.

Secretary:

Minutes Approved:




. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. MINUTES

1. Annual Watermaster Board Meeting —
January 26, 2006

2. Advisory and Watermaster Board
Conference call — January 30, 2006




Draft Minutes
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ANNUAL WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING
January 26, 2006

The Watermaster Board Meeting was held at the offices of the Chino Basin Watermaster, 9641 San
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, California, on January 26, 2006 at 11:00 a.m.

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT

Ken Willis, 2006 Chair
Sandra Rose

Terry Catlin

Al Lopez

Bob Kuhn

Bob Bowcock

Paul Hofer

Paul Hamrick

Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel

Watermaster Staff Present
Kenneth R. Manning
Gordon Treweek

Danielle Maurizio

Sherri Lynne Molino

Watermaster Consultants Present

Scott Siater
Michael Fife
Mark Wildermuth

Others Present
Robert Neufeld, 2005 Chair
Bill Kruger
Rosemary Hoerning
Justin Scott-Coe
Ken Jeske

Robert Del.oach
Mike Maestas

Mark Kinsey

Rich Atwater

Rick Hansen

Jeff Pierson
Charles Moorrees
Henry Pepper
Carole McGreevy
Dave Crosley

West End Consolidated Water Company
Monte Vista Water District

Intand Empire Utilities Agency

Western Municipal Water District

Three Valleys Municipal Water District
Vulcan Materials Company

Agricultural Pool, Crops

Jurupa Community Services District
Agricultural Pool, Dairy

Chief Executive Officer
Project Engineer
Senigr Engineer
Recording Secretary

Hatch & Parent
Hatch & Parent
Wildermuth Environmental inc.

Fontana Union Water Company
City of Chino Hills

City of Upland

Vulcan Materials Company

City of Ontario

Cucamonga Valley Water District
City of Chino Hills

Monte Vista Water District

inland Empire Ulilities Agency
Three Valieys Municipal Water District
Ag Pool/Crops

Santa Ana Water Company

City of Pomona

Jurupa Community Services District
City of Chino

The Watermaster Board Meeting was called to order by Mr. Manning at 11:00 a.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

-
[



?.—3!

| QW]

Minutes Annual Watermaster Board Meeting January 26, 2006

AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER
It was noted there will be an extended discussion on the legal items presented today.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
No public comments were received.

INTRODUCTIONS - CALENDAR YEAR 2006 WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS

John Anderson inland Empire Utilities Agency

Bob Bowcock Non-Agricultural Pool (Vulcan Materials Company)
Paul Hamrick Jurupa Community Services

Paui Hofer Agricultural Pool {Crops)

Bob Kuhn Three Valleys Municipal Water District

Al Lopez Western Municipal Water District

Sandra Rose Monte Vista Water Disfrict

Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel Agricultural Pool (Dairy)

Ken Willis West End Consolidated Water Company

RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS

1.

Mr. Robert Neufeld

Mr. Manning presented the former Watermaster Board Chair with a Commendation of
Service award and thanked him for his service as the board chair and his tremendous
efforts on behalf of the Chino Basin.

Mr. Bill Kruger
Mr. Manning presented Mr. Kruger with a Commendation of Service plaque and thanked

him for all his efforts while servicing on the Walermaster Board.

. CALENDAR YEAR 2006 OFFICERS — Action
A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

1.

Nominations wili be heard for Watermaster Board Chair:

Mr. Lopez nominated Mr. Paul Hamrick for Board Chair and Mr. Hamrick seconded the
nomination,

Ms. Rose nominated Mr. Ken Willis for Board Chair and Mr. Bowcock seconded the
nomination

By majority vote it was decided Mr. Willis will be the 2006 Chair.

Nominations will be heard for Watermaster Board Vice-Chair:

Mr. Willis nominated Mr. Harnrick as Board Vice-Chair and Mr. Bowecock seconded the
nomination.

By unanimous vole ff was decided Mr. Harnrick will be the 2006 Vice-Chair
Nominations will be heard for Watermaster Board Secretary/Treasurer:

Mr. Vanden Heuvel nominated Ms. Sandra Rose as the Board Secretary/Treasurer and
Mr. Bowcock seconded the nomination.

By unanimous vole it was decided Ms. Rose will be the 2006 Board Secretary/Treasurer

Mr. Manning turned the meeting over to the new Chair Mr. Willis.




Minutes Annual Watermaster Board Meeting January 26, 2006

R

CONSENT CALENDAR

A

MINUTES
1.  Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held December 15, 2005

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER INVESTMENT POLICY
Resolution 06-01 - Resolution of the Chino Basin Watermaster, San Bernardino County,
California, re-authorizing the Watermaster's Investment Policy

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
Resolution 06-02 — Resolution Authorizing Investment of Monies in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF)

ASSESSMENTS
Resolution 06-03 — Resolution of the Chino Basin Watermaster Levying Replenishment and
Administrative Assessments for Fiscal Year 2005-2006

NOTICE OF INTENT
Annual Filing of Notice of Intent Regarding the Determination of Operating Safe Yield

Motion by Kuhn, second by Hamrick, and by majority vote and one abstention
Moved to approve Consent Calendar ltems A through E, as presenied

BUSINESS ITEMS

A.

PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CHINO
BASIN FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Mr. Manning stated Watermaster is in the process of working with our partners in the
development of a number of improvements to the recharge facilities that have been improved
over the last few years. One item that is going to be looked at is the area of earthen berms, the
other area that we need assistance in is the area of Department of Safety of Dams in analyzing
how staff can work with Flood Control and the Department of Safety of Dams to make sure we
are maximizing the length of the time the water stays within the basins. Staff is seeking to hire a
consuliant to assist in these areas. The confract presented is for $10,000 dollars and Mr.
Manning noted he has a limit to sign contracts up to $9,999.99. Mr. Manning stated even if this
was not over his signatory limit it is important to bring these types of items to the Watermaster
Board for approval and understanding.

Motion by Vanden Heuvel, second by Kuhn, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the proposal to secure a professional engineering support service
(Stantec) for the Chino Basin Facilities Improvement Project, as presented

BASIN OPERATIONS MANUAL

Mr. Manning stated the County Flood Control Department is looking for two things to occur
before they will feel comfortable in relinquishing control of the basins during flood events and
during non-flood events. The Operations Manual is one of those two items; the other was the
introduction of operations of the SCADA system. The operations of SCADA are complete
enough for them to feel comfortable that we can operate the basins from remote locations and
not have a problem in a storm event. The Operations Manual is before the Advisory Committee
now and has gone through the Pools with unanimous support; however a request from the
Conservation District to change the motion that would be made to the Advisory Committee to
change to motion to a receive and file rather than approve. The reason for this change is that
they and we feel this is a document that wili have a number of changes fo it over the next few
years as we operate and use it — making it a fluid document. Since there are policy statements
contained in the Operations Manual, staff feels it important to review it periodically with the
Watermaster. A brief discussion ensued with regard to the manual and its review process.
Mr. Vanden Heuvel asked if a presentation can be given in the future on the workings of this
document. Mr. Manning stated that a presentation wili be scheduled in the next few months.




Minutes Annual Watermaster Board Meeting January 26, 2006

Motion by Vanden Heuvel, second by Catlin, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve to Receive and File the Basin Operations Manual, as presented

C. MONTE VISTA WATER DISTRICT APPLICATION TO RECHARGE

Mr. Manning stated in November 2005 Monte Vista Water District (MVWD) sent to Watermaster
an application for recharge by injection, up to 3,500 acre-feet in four wells which triggers, by
Watermaster, an analysis of material physical injury. This request for material physical injury
was forwarded to Wildermuth Environmental to do the analysis. In Wildermuth’s analysis of this
application it was concluded there is no material physical injury caused by this application.
Staff's recommendation is based upon Wildermuth's findings. Mr. Manning noted there is a
slight modification in the mation which is presented in the meeting package which alleviates the
wording regarding the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). Mr. Manning read how
the new motion would read with the minor change and noted MVWD wili enter into an
agreement with Chino Basin Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA). The permit
required for this recharge application would be covered by the Watermaster/IEUA permit for
recharge of imported and recycled water, whereby MVWD will forego going through the RWQCB
and working through the Maximum Benefits Permits with IEUA. A question regarding the
decision fo forego the RWQCB was presented. Mr. Wildermuth stated that MVWD submitted
their application along with the large document that is included in the meeting packet which led
Wildermuth Environmental to its review. Mr. Wildermuth noted this is a very small project in and
amongst wells that are owned and operated by MVWD, This project avoids 3,500 acre-feet of
spreading somewhere else in the basin. Based on those findings and other criteria there are no
subsidence issues, water quality issues and this project does assist in the implementation of ihe
Optimum Basin Management Plan (OBMP). The conclusion is there is no material physical
injury and implementation of this project supports the OBMP. Mr. Manning stated that staff is
pleased that this approach is going to be tested by MVYWD on their well field. The opportunity to
run this test case at MVWD actually is a benefit to the basin by allowing us to learn a lot about
recharge by injection which could assist us in the future; this test will be walched very closely. A
discussion ensued with regard to the structure of the permit and the timing of the test. A
question regarding monitoring/check in capabilities was presented. Mr. Wildermuth siated the
monitoring/check in process will be covered in the monitoring program resulting from the permit
requirements, which is the reason that permits expire and also have monitoring/check in
requirements. |t was noted that Mr. Kinsey stated at the Appropriative Pool meeting that he has
no problem with some sort of monitoring programs and that will be made part of the permit
andlor agreement. A discussion ensued with regard to the Regional Board’s interest in this
permit. Counsel Slater offered comment on the legal aspects of permitting. Mr. Wildermuth
discussed the historical events for obtaining permits and noted the Regional Board is supportive
of our permitting process. Mr. Manning stated there are two places in which this will come back
through the Watermaster process, one as the permit is being developed and second is on the
renewals of the permit.

Mation by Vanden Heuvel, second by Kuhn, and by unanimous vote
Moved fo approve the Monte Vista Water District’s application to recharge a
maximum of 3,500 acre-feet/yr of treated State Water Project water by injection at its
wells 1, 4, 30 and 32 subject to entering into an agreement with the Watermaster and
Inland Empire Utilities Agency whereby MVWD’s recharge would be covered in the
Watermaster/IEUA permit for the recharge of imported and recycled water and to
have the permitting process come through the Watermaster process, as presented



Minutes Annual Watermasier Board Meeting January 26, 2008

IV. REPORTS/UPDATES
A. WATERMASTER GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT

1.

Board Reappeintment Motion

Counsel Slater stated at the December 2005 Watermaster Board meeting counsel was
directed to file 8 motion seeking the reappointment of the nine member board. There were
revisions to that original motion that were suggested and approved at the Board meeting;
there is a copy of the motion availabie on the back table. The hearing for this motion is
scheduled for February 9, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. Counsel Stater stated that subsequently the
Special Referee has filed a report of comments on Watermaster’s motion for reappointment
which was filed two weeks prior. The Special Referee's comments are available on the back
table. Since this document was just received a few days ago, Watermaster counsel has not
had time {o get formal direction from the Board as to how we should respond to the report
and is seeking that direction now. In anticipation of the Watermaster Board meeting today,
counsel has started to draft a response and a copy of that draft response is on the back
table for review. The Advisory Commitiee discussed the Special Referee's report at length
and stated by unanimous decision they wanted the Watermaster Board to be made aware
that they want a request for more time to respond to her comments be filed with the court.
Counsel Slater stated that the Special Referee's motion stated three main items, 1) listed
complaints, 2) required additional information on items, and 3) interpreted our motion for
reappoiniment as a two year term instead of a five year term. Counse! Slater stated that in
reviewing the perceived information and noting that the Special Referee did not
acknowledge all the good work that has been accomplished there are three options the
Board can take. Counsel Slater noted the date to file a response in four days from today.
The options are as follows 1) accept the report as is, accepting the two year term and
schedule the two demanded workshops (one in three months and one in six months),
2) ask for a continuance due to the fact it is impossible for all the interested agencies to
review this document at such a iate date, take it to their boards and interested parties, and
have sufficient time to respond, and 3) amend the motion to clarify that the request is for a
five year term, request a possible 30 day extension for review, and recitation of the correct
view about Watermaster's accomplishments over the past five years. A long-lasting
discussion ensued with regard to this issue by all directors of the board, counsel, and
Watermaster staff. It was noted that a unified voice needed to be heard and changes
needed to be made to the draft response. It was decided that the changes discussed at
today's meeting would be incorporated into the response. A conference call with both the
Advisory Committee members and Watermaster Beard members would take place on
Monday, January 30, 2006 at 8:00 a.m. to review the response prior to the court hearing.
Counsel stated the revised document woutd be transmitted as quickly as possible to allow
time for digestion.

Motion by Kuhn, second by Hamrick, and by unanimous vole
Moved to approve filing an amended motion to clarify the reappointment of the
nine member board is for a five year term, ask the court for a possible 30 day
extension, and note corrections to the view about Walermaster's
accomplishments over the past five years.

Peace |l Process

Counsel Slater stated counsel and Wildermuth Environmental continues to prepare the
responses to the questions that were put forward in the two workshops and it is anticipated
those responses will be completed shortly. After the responses are presented, it will be
decided what steps are needed in moving the process forward to completion.




Minutes Annual Watermaster Board Meeting January 26, 2006

ENGINEERS REPORT

Mr. Manning noted the first item on the CEO/Staff Report section is the Engineers Report
section which will become a regular agendized item from now on. This will give our engineers a
chance to keep the parties up to date on technical activities. Mr. Wildermuth stated that he is
diligently working on the Peace 1l Technical Report which is formulated out of the questions and
comments received at the workshops, emails, and conversations. It is anticipated the report will
be compleled soon. Mr. Wildermuth stated that last summer Wildermuth Environmental
completed its analysis of the accumulative effect of transfers and the balance of recharge and
discharge, which needs to be done every two years on odd years. This will be brought through
the Watermaster process for approval.

CEO/STAFF REPORT

1.

Ontario International Alrport Data Reguest

Mr. Manning offered comment on the history of the Ontario International Airports
Potentially Resporisible Parties (PRP’s) issue. In July, the Regional Water Quality Control
Board (RWQCB) sent six PRP's draft clean up and abatement orders on the Ontario
international Airport plume. There have been two subsequent meetings held with those
PRP's; the first meeting was an introduction meeting where information was shared about
ihe evidence that ied those organizations to be at the table and the second meeting was to
discuss potential solutions. Staff was pleased with the PRP's reactions at the meetings, it
was thought by discussions at the second meeting that the PRP's had held individual
meetings prior to the main meeting. At the last meeting they did make a request to
Watermaster to supply them with data that the RWQCB and others were relying on that
would show that they were in fact responsible for the pollution. Much of that data was in
our agricultural well area which required special authorization from the Agricultural Pool to
seek well release information. Staff has not received 100% of the release cards fo date;
however, enough were received in a wide enough area to move forward with the PRP's
request of data.

Water Activity Update
Mr. Manning stated we have experienced one storm this season and along with that storm

Watermaster is doing some recharge of State Water Project water off the Metropolitan
delivery system. Mr. Treweek noted last year was the first year that we had most CBFIP
facilities in place which recharged approximately 18,000 acre-feel of storm water and
about 12,000 acre-feet of imported water for a total around 30,000 acre-feet. This year
Watermaster set a goal of approximately 50,000 acre-feet consisting of 20,000 acre-feet of
storm water, 28,000 acre-feet of imported water, and 3,000 acre-feet of recycled water;
this is an ambitious goal. As for the six month report, approximately 1,000 acre-feet of
recycled water, 3,000 acre-feet of storm water, and 16,000 acre-feet of imported water for
a total of 20,000 acre-feet has been recharged within the first six months of this year. We
are looking to capture over the remaining six months about 30,000 acre-feet, a good
portion of that amount will be imported water unless the storms pick up. Mr. Manning
stated during the next several months staff will keep the pariies apprised of all water
activities.

V. INEQRMATION
Newspaper Articles
No comment was made regarding this item.

1.

NWRA Election Resulis

No comment was made regarding this item.

AGWA Hydrologic, Environmental and Legislative Challenges to Southern California’s Present

and Future Managed Aguifer Recharge Programs Monday, February 6, 2006
No comment was made regarding this item.




Minutes Annual Watermaster Board Meeting January 26, 2006

4. intearated Resource Management Business Disclosure
No comment was made regarding this item.

Vl. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
It was decided since there were unresolved motion issues, a conference call pending, and a court
hearing date of February 9, 2006, this meeting will not be adjourned today and will be continued to
Thursday, February 16, 2008 at 1:00 p.m.

Vil. OTHER BUSINESS

Ms. Rose stated she was glad to be a part of this board and looked forward to getting to know each
director and all the interesting aspects of our water issues. Mr. Vanden Heuvel thanked Mr. Neufeld
for all of his hard work and his continued efforls that he knows he will make on behalf of the Chino
Basin. Mr. Kuhn stated that he is excited to work with Ms. Rose and Mr. Willis and welcomed them
to the Chino Basin Watermaster process. Mr. Willis thanked the parties present for the confidence in
him fo elect him as chair and offered a brief narrative on his vast work in public relations and his past
and present water expertise.

Viil. EUTURE MEETINGS

January 25, 2006 1:00 p.m.  MZ1 Technicai Committee Meeting
January 26, 2006 8:00 a.m.  Annual Advisory Committee Meeting
January 26, 2006 11:00 a.m.  Annual Watermaster Board Meeting
February 9, 2008 9:00 a.m.  Joint Appropriative & Non-Ag Pool Meeting
February 21, 2006 9:00 a.m.  Agricultural Pool Meeting @ IEUA
February 23, 2006 9:00 a.m.  Advisory Committee Meeting

February 23, 2006 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board Meeting

The Annual Watermaster Board Meeting is continued to Thursday, February 18, 2006 at 1:00 p.m.

Secretary:

Minutes Approved:

pommt



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION




Draft Minutes
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ADVISORY COMMITTEE & WATERMASTER BOARD CONFERENCE CALL
January 30, 2006

The Watermaster Board conference call took place on January 30, 2006 at 8:00 a.m.

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS ON THE CALL

Ken Willis, Chair City of Upland
Sandra Rose Monte Vista Water District
Bob Kuhn Three Valleys Municipal Water District

Bob Bowcock
Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel

Watermaster Staff On the Call
Kenneth R. Manning

Sheri Rojo

Sherri Lynne Molino

Watermaster Consultants On the Call

Scott Slater
Michae! Fife
Mark Wildermuth

Others Present On the Call
Ken Jeske

Justin Brokaw

Jill Willis

J. Arnold Rodriguez

Robert Del.oach

Mike Maestas

Mark Kinsey

Raui Garibay

Tom Bunn

Vulcan Materials Company
Agriculiural Peol, Dairy

Chief Executive Officer
C.F.O/Assistant G.M.
Recording Secretary

Hatch & Parent
Hatch & Parent
Wildermuth Environmental inc.

City of Ontario

Marygold Mutual Water Company

Attorney for Cucamongsa Valley WD

Santa Ana River Water Company
Cucarnonga Valley Water District

City of Chino Hilis

Monte Vista Water District

City of Pomona

Lagerloff, Senecal, Bradley, Gosney & Kruse

The Watermaster Board Conference cali began at 8:00 a.m.

It was asked if all parties on the conference call had a copy of the latest pleading and it was noted all
parties had received a copy. After some discussion it was noted there appears to be four goals that need
to be accomplished in the response; 1) correct any misconception that the motion for reappointment is for
a five year term and not a two year term, 2) clearly state ali parties are asking for the reappointment of the
nine member board, 3} suggest we are very capable of making and carrying out decisions, and 4) parties
want to avoid any unnecessary workshops. A discussion ensued with regard to the Special Referee's
request for a workshop in three months and again in six months. Counse! Slater stated this needs to he a
Watermaster Board discussion and that the Watermaster is capable of digesting data; workshops are not
always needed to be heard. This needs to be an open process and counsel needs to get to court and
make our case to the judge. A discussion ensued with regard to why the Special Referee responded the
way she did. It was noted that we need to focus on the next increment of five years instead of focusing on
our failure to come to closure. 1t was noted that by the tone of the Special Referee’s response that she
has been provided sanitized views of what we are doing and the progress we are making. Counssl Stater
stated he believes she wants to see a resolution and a conclusion. A discussion regarding the five year
term misconception ensued. Counsel stated that will be corrected and the judge will understand we are

Y

<D




| al]

c2

Minutes Advisory & WM Board Conference Call January 30, 2006

asking for a five year reappointment. Ms. Rose stated she would find a workshop very beneficial since
she is new to the topics at hand. Counsel Slater identified the difference between an open workshop and
a Special Referee and noted Watermaster is capable of holding informative individual workshops at which
we could leave an open invitation for the Special Referee to attend. Mr. Kuhn stated he is hoping for an
open workshop because when it is recorded it really puts off open and honest conversation and
statements. Mr. Willis inquired to Ms. Rose if she had an opportunity to have a sit down with the
Watermaster staff and Ms. Rose stated that she in deed has met with staff. It was noted that
Watermaster can hold a workshop in a formal or an informal setting and invite the Special Referee to sit
in. Mr. Vanden Heuve! inquired if we hold workshops do we still need to go to court and it was noted that
answer was unknown. Mr. Jeske stated he is also in favor of a more informal workshop.

Motion by Kuhn, second by Willis, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the pleading as presented to the court and a willingness to hold
as many workshops as needed. A six month report will be formally given to the
court on progresses.

A discussion regarding the six month report ensued. Counsel Slater noted we can hold as many
workshops as we want and that we do not have to hold a formal workshop; however, this report was due
to the court in September 2005 and we will need to ask for a continuance consistent with the Speciai
Referee's recommendations. Mr. Manning stated we are going to send a message that we are going to
be responsive and that we are seeking court approval. Mr. Vanden Heuvel spoke on the Peace I process
and noted he felt the Special Referee’s comments were not a negative and his hopes are that we can
have a single voice to present to the judge because we are not unified at this moment in time. The time
frame for the Peace Il process was discussed. A discussion ensued with regard to page 8 and it was
noted that page needs to be polished. It was noted that the other changes that were discussed would be
clarified in the document prior to the court time today.

Motion by Kuhn, second by Vanden Heuvel, and by unanimous vote
Moved to approve the pleading with the changes that was discussed to the court and
a willingness to hold as many workshops as needed and have more informal
communication with the Special Referee with a court hearing date for finalization in
July 2006,

A question regarding Judge Gunn ensued and it was noted there is a possibility that he will not continue as
our judge. A discussion ensued with regard to the current Special Referee guiding the new judge and it
was decided that this item needs to be agendized for the Watermaster Board in its entirety to discuss this
issue. Counsel Slater stated a presentation as to the role of Watermaster and the referee could be given
at a board meeting. With no further comments received.

The Watermaster Board Conference Call ended at 8:45 a.m.

Secretary:

Minutes Approved:




Pk
.

I. CONSENT CALENDAR
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS

Cash Disbursements for the month of December 2005

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in
Working Capital for the Period July 1, 2005 through November
30, 2005

Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period
November 1, 2005 through November 30, 2005

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July through November 2005
Cash Disbursements for the month of January 2006

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in
Working Capital for the Period July 1, 2005 through December
31, 2005

Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December
1, 2005 through December 31, 2005

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual July through December 2005




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 809.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING
Chief Executive Officer

STAFF REPORT

DATE: February 9, 2006
February 21, 2006
February 23, 2006

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Cash Disbursement Report — December 2005
SUMMARY
Issue — Record of cash dishbursements for the month of December 2006.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Cash Disbursements for December 2006 be received and
filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — All funds disbursed were inciuded in the FY 2005-06 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND
A monthly cash disbursement report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster expenditures.

DISCUSSICN

Total cash disbursements during the month of December 2006 were $1,962,805.66. The most significant
expenditures during the month were Inland Empire Utilities Agency in the amount of $1,341.056.70, Wildermuth
Environmental Inc. in the amount of $392.949.65, and Hatch and Parent in the amount of $38,055.02.

2o



LB

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Cash Disbursement Detall Report

December 2005
Type Date Num Name Amount
Dec 0§

General Journal 121112008 05/12/03 PAYROLL -5,628.55
General Journal 12/1/2065 05/12/03 PAYROLL -21,151.27
Bifl Pmt -Check 12/2{2005 100662 MEDIA JIM -300.00
Bilt Pmt -Check 12/2/2006 16083 MEDIA JIM -765.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10064 ACWA -8,680.00
8i1 Pmt -Check 12162005 10065 ANDERSON, JOHN -125.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10066 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES -2,501.10
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2008 10067 ARROWHEAD MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER -26.02
B Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10068 BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION -1,050.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10069 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT -5,076.00
Bilt Pmt -Check 12/6/2605 10070 DHRECTV -74.98
8ii Pmt -Check 121612005 10071 GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES -217.39
gill Pmt -Check 121612005 10072 GLOBAL PRESENTER.COM -83.20
Bili Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10074 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY -461,915.60
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10075 KRUGER, W. C. "BILL" -125.00
Biil Pt -Check 12/6/2005 10076 KUHN, BOB -250.00
Bilt Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10077 NEUFELD, ROBERT -375.60
8ii Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10078 NORDBAK'S PROMOTIONAL PRODUCTE -468.77
8ill Pmt -Check 12/6/2006 10078 OFFICE DEPOT -141.16
Bill Pmt -Check 12/5/2008 10080 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES, INC. -128.50
Bifl Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10081 PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES 54,74
Bilt Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10082 PRINTING RESOURCES -527.98
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2008 10083 PLIRCHASE POWER -2,016.99
Bili Pmt -Check 12/6/2006 10084 R&D PEST SERVICES -85.00
8ill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10085 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Maintenance -40.00
Bill Pmt -Check 121612005 10086 SCOTT-COE, JUSTIN -125.00
Bi#l Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10087 SPRINT -560.14
Bill Pmt -Check 12/8/2008 10088 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. -566.60
Bill Pent -Check 12/8/2005 10089 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND -1,113.88
Bilt Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10090 VANDEN HEUVEL, GEOFFREY -375.00
8ill Pmt -Check 12/62008 10091 VELASQUEZ JANITORIAL -1,300.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10092 YUKON DISPOSAL SERVICE -123.90
Bill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10093 HATCH AND PARENT -39,055.02
Biil Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10094 PARK PLACE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. -2,145.00
Bl Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10685 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS -833.09
Bilf Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10086 INLAND COUNTIES INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. -238.57
Bili Pt -Check 12/8/2005 10097 OFFICE DEPOT -461.18
8ill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10098 PAYCHEX -172.38
Bill Pt ~-Check 12/6/2005 10089 QUILL -131.37
Bl Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10100 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Maintenance -745.50
Bill Pm! -Check 121612005 10101 THE FURMAN GROUR, INC. -2.625.00
Bilt Pmt -Check 12162005 10102 UNION 76 -288.06
Bitt Pmi -Check 12162005 10103 VERIZON -41.41

Bili Pmi -Chack 121612005 10104 CALPERS -2,428.35
gill Pmt -Check 12/6/2005 10105 . WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC -194,212.44
Bill Pmt -Check 121812005 10106 VIP AUTO DETAILING : -378.40
B Pmt -Check 12/13/2005 10107 PETTY CASH -580.91

General Journal 12/15/2005 05/12/5 PAYROLL -2,018.85
General Journal 12152005 05/12/5 PAYROLL -14,148.48
Bilt Pmt -Check 121182008 10108 EL TORITO -201.82
gilt Pmit -Check 12/20/2005 10108 ACWA SERVICES CORPORATION -223.18
Bil Pmt -Check 1212012005 10110 BANK OF AMERICA -1,864.38
Bitf Pmt -Cheek 1212012005 10111 CALPERS -2,650.83
Biti Pmt -Check 12/20/2005 10112 ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS, LLP -28,648.12
Bilt Pt -Check 12/20/2005 10113 EXCEL LANDSCAFE -1.206.00
Bilt Prnt -Check 12/20/2005 10114 FIRST AMERICAN REAL ESTATE SOLUTIONS -125.00
Bili Pmt -Check $2/20/2005 10115 HATCH AND PARENT 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check 121202005 10116 MCI -809.55
Bill Pmt -Check 121202006 10117 QUI.L -92.85
Bill Pmt -Check 12/20/2005 10118 REID & HELLYER -10,509.80
Bi Pmt -Check 12/20/2005 10118 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Lease -3,591.31

BHl Pt -Check 1212012005 10120 TREWEEK, GORDON -2,262.05

Bilt Prmt -Check 12/20/2005 10121 LUNITED PARCEL SERVICE -208.95

Bilt Pmt -Check 12/20/2065 10122 VERIZON -361.06

8ill Pmt -Check 12/20/2005 10123 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC -198,737.24

Bill Pmt -Check 121262005 10124 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Maintenance -1,111.42

Bill Pmt -Check 12/26/2005 10125 STAULA, MARY L -136.61

Bil Pmt -Check 121202008 10126 WATER EDUCATION FOUNDATION -150.00

W)




o ot

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Cash Disbursement Detail Report

December 2005
Type Date Num Name Amount

General Journal 12/20/20605 05M217 PAYROLL -6,197.61
General Journal 12/20/2005 05/1217 PAYROLL -22,128.45
Bill Pmt -Check 1212212005 10127 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY -879,141.10
Bill Pmt -Check 12/22/2005 10128 CITISTREET -2,450.00
Bill Pmt ~Check 12/2212005 10129 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENTY SYSTEM 0.00
Bili Pmt -Check 121222005 10130 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM -17,451.78
Bill Pml -Check 1212272005 10131 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM -5,0662.16
Biil Pmt -Check 12423/2005 10132 A&RTIRE -34.87
Bill Pmt -Check 1242312005 10133 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES, INC. -128.50
Bilt Pmt -Check 12/23/2005 10134 STARNDARD INSURANCE CO. -568.49
General Journal 1213112005 051210 1,148.33

+1,962,905.66

Dec 05

it e




Adminisirative Revenues
Administralive Assessments
Ineresl Revenue
Mutual Agency Project Revenue
Grant Income
Misceilaneous [ncome

Total Revenues

Adminislrative & Project Expendifures
Walermasler Administralion
Watermasler Board-Advisory Commitlee
Pool Administration
Cpiimura Basin Mgnt Administration

~QBME.Project Cosis
Education Funds Use
Mutual Agency Project Costs

Tatal Administralive/OBMP Expenses
MNel Administralive/OBMP Income
Allocate Net Admin Income To Pools
Allocate Net OBMP ncome To Pools
Agricultural Expense Transfer
Tolal Expenses
Net Adminisirative Income

Othar income/{Expense)
Replenishment Waler Purchases
MZ1 Supplemenial Water Assessmenis
Waler Purchases
MZ1 Imperted Waler Purchase
Groundwater Replenishment
Nat Other Income

Mel Translers To/{From) Reserves

Waorking Capilal, July 1, 2005
Waorking Capilal, End Of Period

Q4165 Production
04705 Production Percentages

Q Finenoad 0505 Decil. DecalsjSheatl

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

FOR THE

PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2005

OPTIMUM  POOL ADMINISTRATION AND SPECIAL PROJEGTS  GROUNDWATER OPERATIONS
WATERMASTER BASIN APPROPRIATIVE AGRICULTURAL NON-AGRIC. GROUNDWATER §B222 EDUCATION  GRAND BUDGET
ADMINISTRATION MANAGEMENT POOL POOL POOL. REPLENISHMENT  FUNDS FUNDS TOTALS 2004-05
- $3,084,888
57,326 6,167 1,969 £5.462 78,330
- o
. o
- 0
! - 57,396 8,67 1,669 - X - 85462 4,063,018
179,870 179,970 621,784
21,639 21,639 37,018
7.852 56,730 2,004 66,586 91,153
566,268 566,268 1,019,183
1,079,008 1,079,008 3,733,694
375 375 375
13,040 13,040 80,004
214,640 1,645,275 7852 58,730 7,004 375 1,026,886 5,563,211
(214.649) (1,645,276)
214,649 166,686 44,929 3,035 - o
1,645,276 1,277,639 344,378 23,260 - 0
443,011 {443,011) - 0
1,805,188 3075 28,208 B - 375 175,886 5,683,211
{1.837,862) 3,142 T36,329) @75) 11.861,424) (1,519,064)
369,248 369,248 0
. 2,179,500
. 0
- {2,278,500)
(5,108,853 (3,109,953) 0
- . . (2,740,705) . - 2,746,705y (65,500
(1,837,862) 3,142 {26,329) (2,740,705) - {375) (4.602,120) (1,618,893}
4,450,869 464,653 187,295 3,560,469 158,251 2,238 8,843,608
2.613,007 367,795 160,069 839,794 158,251 7,663 4,241,679
127,810,967 34,450,449 2,326.836 154,588 252
77.655% 20.831% 1.414% 100.000%

Prapared by Shen Rojo, Chief Financial Officer /Assistant General Manager



o6

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD
NOVEMBER 1 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2005

DEPOSITORIES:

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Cash on Hand - Petty Cash $ 500
Bank of America
Governmental Checking-Demand Deposits $ 135,653
Savings Deposits 9,672
Zero Balance Account - Payroli {27,080} 118,245
Vineyard Bank CD - Agricultural Pool 412,751
Local Agency Investment Fund - Sacramento 4850481
TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND $ 5,381,977
TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 5,664,741
PERIOD INCREASE (DECREASE) $ {182,764)
CHANGE IN CASH POSITION DUE TO:
Decreasef{increase) in Assets: Accounts Receivable b -
Assessments Receivable -
Prepaid Expenses, Deposits & Other Current Assets -
(Decrease)/Increase in Liabilities Accounts Payable 1,262,075
Accrued Payroll, Payroll Taxes & Other Current Liabilities (1,000}
Transfer to/{from} Reserves {1,445,839)
PERIOD INCREASE (DECREASE) 3 {184,764}
Zero Balance
Petty Govt'l Checking Account Vineyard Local Agency
Cash Demand Payroli Bank Investment Funds Totals
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS:
Balances as of 10/31/2005 5 500 & (757,470} $ - 9,672 % 411558 § 5,900,481 § 5,584,741
Deposits - 3,816 - 1,193 - 5,009
Transfers - 986,557 53,443 - (1,050,000} -
Withdrawals/Checks - (107,250) (80,523} - - (187,773)
Balances as of 11/30/2005 3 500 % 135,653 & (27,080} & 96572 § 412751 $ 4,850,481 % 5,381,977
PERIOD INCREASE OR (DECREASE) $ - § 893,123 § {27,080) $ $ 1,193 § (1,050,000} $ (182,764)




GO

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD
NOVEMBER 1 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2005

INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS
Effective Days {o interest Maturity
Date Transaction Depository Activity Redeemed Maturity Rate(*} Yield
11/1/2005 Withdrawal LALF. 3 {850,000}
11/21/2005 Withdrawal LALF. {200,000)
TOTAL INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS $  {1,050,000) -

* The earnings rate for L.A.LF. Is a daily variable rate; 2.18% was the effective yield rate at the Quarter ended September 30, 2005

INVESTMENT STATUS
November 30, 2005
Principal Number of Interest Maturity
Einancial Institution Amount Days Rate Date
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 4,850,481
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 5 4,850,481

Funds on hand are sufficient to meet all foreseen and planned Administrative and project expenditures during the next six months.

All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in Chino Basin Watermaster's investment
Policy.

Respectfully submitted,
Sheri M. Rojo, CF'/:,CD—\D

Chief Financiat Officer & Assistant General Manager
Chino Basin Watermaster

Q:\Financial Slatements\05-06\05 Nov\[Treasurers ReportxlsjSheeli




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July through November 2005

Jul - Nov 05 Budget % Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4010 - Local Agency Subsidies 0 132,000 -132,000 0.0%
4110 - Admin Asmnts-Approp Pool 0 4,804,121 -4,804,121 0.0%
4120 - Admin Asmnts-Non-Agri Pool 4] 73,425 -73.425 0.0%
4700 + Non Operating Revenues 65,462 78,330 -12,868 B3.57%
Total income 65,462 5,087,876 -5,022,414 1.29%
Gross Profit 65,462 5,087,876 -5,022,414 1.29%
Expense
6010 - Salary Gosts 155,574 404,153 -248,579 35.49%
6020 - Office Bullding Expense 33,264 87,850 -64,586 34.0%
6030 - Office Supplies & Equip. 12,014 47,500 -35,486 25.25%
§040 - Postage & Printing Gosts ' 30,061 75,760 45,639 38.71%
6050 - Information Services 56,487 103,500 -47,013 54.58%
6060 « Contract Services 1,939 134,500 -128,561 1.49%
6080 * Insuranee -691 24,210 «24 .91 -2.86%
5110 - Dues and Subscriptions 2,102 14,000 -11,898 15.02%
6140 - WM Admin Expenses 784 6,500 -5,706 12.22%
6150 - Field Supplies -1,832 4,050 -5,882 -45.23%
6170 - Travel & Transportation 43,353 45,200 -1,847 95.91%
6190 - Conferences & Seminars 5,247 17,500 -12,253 29.98%
6200 - Advisory Gomm - WM Board 5,364 44,082 -7, 718 45.19%
6300 - Waiermaster Board Expenses 15,276 29,782 -14,506 51.20%
8300 - Appr PI-WM & Fool Admin 7,852 15,347 -7.485 51.16%
8400 - Agri Pool-WM & Pool Admin 8,423 18,756 -10,334 44.91%
B467 * Agri-Pool Legal Services 45 283 45,000 283 100.63%
8470 - Ag Mesting Attend -Special 3,025 10,600 -8,975 30.25%
8500 - Non-Ag PI-WM & Pool Admin 2,004 7423 -5,419 27.0%
8500 - Education Funds Use Expens 375 375 0 100.0%
9500 - Allocated G&A Expenditures -158,342 -378,284 219,942 41.86%
Subtotal G&A Expenditures 268,570 733,144 -464,574 368.63%
5200 - Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 511,398 998,767 -485,371 51.31%
5950 + Mutua! Agency Projects 13,640 75,000 -61,960 17.38%
9501 - G&A Expenses Allocated-OBMP 54,872 109,541 -54,669 50.09%
Subtotal OBMP Expenditures 579,308 1,181,308 -6(32,000 48.04%
7101 - Production Monitoring 25,736 68,755 -43,018 37.43%
7102 + In-line Meter installation 8,405 07,954 -89,549 8.58%
7103 - Grdwtr Quality Monitoring 67,701 66,503 1,198 101.8%
7104 - Gdwir Level Monitoring 56,226 184,812 -118,586 35.83%
7405 - Sur Wtr Qual Monitoring 8,273 90,223 -81,850 9.17%
7106 - Wir Level Sensors install 0 5,734 -5,734 0.0%
7107 - Ground Level Monitoring 62,333 554,825 -492,482 11.24%
7108 - Hydraulic Control Monitoring 199,835 495,368 -295,533 40.34%
7109 - Recharge & Well Monitoring Prog 294,615 133,061 161,554 221.41%
7200 - PE2- Comp Recharge Pgm 132,810 758,105 -626,295 17.5%

i

o



cu

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July through Novernber 2005

7300 - PE3&S-Water Supply/Desalte

7400 - PE4- Mgmt Plan

7500 - PEB&T-CoopEffortsiSaltMgmt

7600 - PE8&Y-StorageMgmt/Con] Use

76580 - Recharge [mprovement Debt Pymt

1700 - Inactive Weli Protection Prgm

9502 - G&A Expenses Allocated-Projects
Subtotal Project Expenditures

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

QOther IncomelExpense
Other Income
4231 - MZ1 Assigned Water Sales
4210 - Approp Pool-Replenishment

Total Other income

Other Expense
5010 - Groundwater Replenishment
9999 + Tol/{From) Reserves

Total Other Expense

Net Qther income

Net Income

[oh}

Jul - Nov 05 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

339 12,548 -12,209 2.7%
60,353 1,081,014 -1,020,661 5.58%
44,244 255,769 -211,526 17.3%
4,667 77,268 -72.601 6.04%
0 300,000 -300,000 0.0%
0 12,128 -12,128 0.0%
103,470 268,742 -165,272 38.5%
1,079,008 4,463,809 -3,384 B0+ 24.17%
1,526,886 6,378,261 -4,451,375 30.21%
-1.861,424 -1,290,3B5 -571,038 144,25%
0 600,000 -600,000 0.0%

368,248
369,248 600,060 -230,752 61.54%
3,108,853 699,000 2,410,953 444 92%
-4,602,129 -1,388,385 -3,212,744 331.24%
-1,482,176 -690,385 -804,791 216.14%
1,861,424 1,280,385 571,039 144.25%
0 D o 0.0%




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

9641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamanga, Ca 81730
Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.chwm.org

KENNETH R. MANNING

Chief Executive Officer
STAFF REPORT
DATE: February 9, 2006
February 21, 2006

February 23, 2006

TO: Committee Members
Watermaster Board Members

SUBJECT: Cash Disbursement Report — January 2006
SUMMARY
Issue - Record of cash disbursements for the month of January 2006.

Recommendation — Staff recommends the Cash Disbursements for January 2006 be received and
filed as presented.

Fiscal Impact — All funds disbursed were included in the FY 2005-06 Watermaster Budget.

BACKGROUND
A monthly cash disbursement report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster expenditures.

DISCUSSION

Total cash disbursements during the month of January 2006 were $3,18.653.95. The most significant
expenditures during the month were Eliison, Schneider & Harris, LLP in the amount of $11,634,06, Wildermuth
Environmental Inc. in the amount of $168,643.61 and Hatch and Parent in the amount of $25,218.04

Lo
e



32

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Cash Disbursement Detail Report

January 2006
Type Date Num Name Amount
Jan 06
Bill Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10135 AMERICAN GROUND WATER TRUST -250.00
Bifl Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10136 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES -1,801.95
Bill Pmt -Checlc 11512006 10137 ARROWHEAD MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER -26.02
Bili Pent -Check 115/2006 10138 GIRECTV -74.98
8ill Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10138 INLAND COUNTIES INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. -238.57
Blll Pmt -Check 11512006 10140 MEDIA JiM -765.00
Bil Pmt -Check 1152006 10141 PAYCHEX -283.30
Bilt Pt -Check 1/5/2006 10142 PRINTING RESOURCES -45.28
Bili Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10143 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Maintenance -40.00
gilt Pmt -Check 17512006 10144 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA WATER COMMITTEE -50.00
Bitt Pmit -Check 1512006 10145 SPRINT -557.10
Bill Pmt -Check 1/5/2G06 10146 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND -1,452 .58
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10147 THE FURMAN GROUP, INC. -2,715.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10148 TOGO'S -54.05
8ill Pmt -Check 1/5/2005 10149 UNION 76 -192.13
Bif Pmt -Check 512006 10150 VERIZON -360.33
Bill Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10151 AMERICAN GROUND WATER TRUST -750.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/5/2006 10152 YUKON DISPOSAL SERVICE -180.54
General Journal 1/5/2006 05/12i9 PAYROLL -6,857.57
General Journal 1/5/2006 G5/12/9 PAYROLL -18,535.42
Bitf Pmt -Check 1/9/2006 10153 TOGO'S -208.60
Bl Pmt -Check 1/9/2006 10154 VIP AUTO DETAILING -504.15
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/10/2006 10155 CAFE CALATO -115.83
Bill Pmi -Check 1/13/2006 10156 ACWA SERVICES CORPORATION -223.18
8ill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10157 ANEDERSON, JOHN -250.00
Bl Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10158 BEN MEADOWS COMPANY -207.07
Bill Pmt -Check +/13/2006 10159 DE BOOM, NATHAN -625.00
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10160 DURRINGTON, GLEN -375.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10161 FEENSTRA, BOB -250.00
8ill Pmt -Cheack 1/13/2006 10162 HAMRICK, PAUL -250.00
Bitl Pt -Check 1/43/2008 10163 Hettinga, Peter -5G0.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/13/2606 10164 HOSTETLER, DAN -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10165 HUITSING, JOHN -750.00
Bili Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10166 KOOPMAN, GENE -375.00
Bill Pmi -Check 171312006 10167 KRUGER, W. C. "BILL" -250.00
Bitt Pmt -Check 171312006 10168 KUHN, BOB -375.00
Bill Pmt -Check 111372008 10169 .OS ANGELES TIMES -42.40
Bill Pmt -Cheack 1/13/2006 10170 MCCALL'S METER SALES & SERVICE -7,133.056
Bil Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10171 MCI -808.17
8ill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10172 NEUFELD, ROBERT -500.00
Bill Pmt -Check 171312006 10173 OFFICE BEPOT -279.33
Bi# Pmt -Check 1113/2008 10174 PARK PLACE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. -2,530.60
Bill Pmt -Check 1713/2006 10175 PIERSON, JEFFREY -256.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10176 PLUMP CHECK -718.50
8ili Pent -Check 1/13/2006 10177 QUILL -139.97
Bill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10178 REID & HELLYER -7.966.26
Bl Pmt ~-Check 1/43/2006 10179 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Maintenance -705.50
Bill Pmt -Check 4/13/2008 10180 SCOTT-COE, JUSTIN -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10181 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE -366.84
Bill Pmt -Checit 1/13/2006 10182 VANDEN HEUVEL, GEOFFREY -5030.00
2ill Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10183 VELASQUEZ JANITORIAL -1,200.00
Bl Pmt -Check 1/13/2006 10184 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT -5,076.00
General Journal 115/2006 G6/013 PAYROLL -6,631.10
General Journal 1/15i2006 06/0%/3 PAYROLL -20,426.69
Bili Pmt -Check 1/19/2006 10185 BANK OF AMERICA, -4,168.28
8ill Pmt -Check 1/18/2006 10186 BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION -1,695.00
B Pmt -Check 1/19/2006 10187 CALPERS -2,660.83
Bill Pmt -Check 4/19/2006 10188 DELUXE BUSINESS FORMS & SUPPLIES -84.53
Bilt Pmt -Check 11182006 10188 FIRST AMERICAN REAL ESTATE SOLUTIONS -125.00
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/18/2006 10190 HATCH AND PARENT -25,218.04
gill Pmt -Check 11912006 10191 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY -60.00
Bill Pmt -Check 1/18/2006 10192 PITNEY BOWES CREDIT CORPORATION -468.72
Bil Pmt -Check 1/19/2006 10193 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES, INC. -128.50
Bill Pmt -Check 1/19/2006 143194 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM -32.34
Bili Pmt -Check 11182006 10195 RICOH BUSINESS SYSTEMS-Lease -3,581.31
Bili Pmi -Check 1/16/2006 10196 STAULA, MARY L -136.61
Bill Pmt -Check 11192006 10197 U S POSTMASTER -20.00
Bitl Pmt -Check 1/49/2006 10198 UNITEK TECHNOLOGY INC, -527.98

oo

G



I
N o

GHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Cash Disbursement Detail Report

January 2006

Type Date Num Name
Bif Pmt -Check 17192006 10188 PUBLIC EMPLOYFES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Bill Pmt -Check 112412006 10200 CAFE CALATO
Bilt Pmt -Checic 1/26/2006 10201 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC
Bili Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10202 ARROWHEAD MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER
8ifl Pmt -Cheack 1/26/2006 10203 CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
8il Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10204 ELLISON, SCHNEIDER & HARRIS, LLP
Bl Pmit -Check 112612006 10205 OFFICE DEFOT
Bill Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10206 PETTY CASH
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10207 PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES
Bill Pmit -Check 1/26/2006 10208 QUILL
Bifl Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10209 SPRINT
il Pmt -Check 1126/2006 10210 STANDARD INSURANCE CO.
Bi# Pmt -Check 112612006 10211 UNITEK TECHNOLOGY INC.
Biil Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10212 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC
Bill Pt -Check 112612006 10213 YUKON DISPOSAL SERVICE
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/26/2006 10214 CLARCY'S ITALIAN MARKET

Jan 08

Amour_lt

-33.91
-71.38
-148,517.36
-26.02
-400.00
-11,634.06
-67.87
-456.75
-31.60
-49.55
-554.00
-568.49
-300.62
-20,126.25
-134.72
-222.77

~318,653.95




Adminisirative Revenues
Adminisirative Assessments
Inleresi Revenue
Mutual Agency Project Revenue
Grant Income
Misceilaneous lncome

Total Revenues

Administrative & Project Expendilures
Watermaster Administration
Watermaster Board-Advisory Commitiee
Pool Administration
Optimum Basin Mgni Administration
QOBMP Project Cosls
Education Funds Use
Mutual Agency Project Costs

Tolal Administrative/OBMP Expenses

Net Administrative/CBMP Income
Allocate Net Admin Income To Pools
Allocate Net OBMP Income To Pools
Agricullural Expense Transfer

Total Expenses
Net Administrative Incorne

Other income/{Expense)
Replenishment Water Purchases
MZ1 Suppiemenial Water Assessmenis
Water Purchases
MZ1 Imported Water Purchase
Groundwater Replenishment
Net Other Income

Net Transfers To/(From) Reserves

Workirg Capital, July 1, 2005
Waorking Capital, End Of Period

04/05 Production
04105 Production Parcentages

T QN 05,25 DecyC:

)
[

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL
FOR THE

PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2005

DecataiShact!

OPTIMUM  POOL ADMINISTRATION AND SPECIAL PROJECTS ~ GROUNDWATER OPERATIONS
WATERMASTER BASIN APPROPRIATIVE AGRICULTURAL NON-AGRIC. GROUNDWATER ~ §B222  EDUCATION  GRAND BUDGET
ADMINISTRATION MANAGEMENT POOL POOL POOL REPLENISHMENT  FUNDS FUNDS TOTALS 2004-05
4,781,347 66,160 4,847,507 53,984,888
100,514 7,951 3,278 37 114,780 78,330
19,879 19,879 0
- 0
- a
- 18,879 4.861,861 7,951 55,438 - " 37 4,670,166 4,063,218
250,746 250,746 621,784
26,185 26,185 37,018
9777 69,642 2,174 81,593 91,153
650,258 850,258 1,019,183
829,450 820450 3,733,694
375 375 75
15,755 15,755 80,004
792,686 1,479,708 9,777 69,642 3174 375 T854,362 5,583,211
[292,686) {1.459,829)

292,686 227,285 51,263 4,128 - 0
1,459,829 1,133,630 305,561 20,638 - 0
430,316 (430.316) - 0
1,801,008 8,150 38,050 - - 375 1854.362 5,584,211
3,080,853 7,801 42,488 1338) 2.194,804 {1,519,093)
6,535,065 6,635,065 0
- 2,179,500
- ]
- (2278500
[4,007,547) (4,007,547) 0
- s - 7,627,518 s - 2,627,518 159,000
3,080,853 1,801 42,488 2,627,518 . (338) 5.752,322  (1,648,993)

4,450,869 464,653 187,298 3,580,499 158,251 2,238 8,843,808

753,722 466,454 720,786 6,208,017 158,251 1,900 14,590,130

127,810.967 34,450,449 2,326.836 164,588.252

77.6656% 20.931% 1.414% 100.000%

Prepared by Sheri Rajo, Chief Financial Officer iAssistant General Manager




30

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



[y

- F

CHINC BASIN WATERMASTER
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD
DECEMBER 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2003

DEPOSITORIES:

Cash on Hand - Petty Cash $ 500
Bank of America
Governmental Checking-Demand Deposits $ 493387
Savings Deposits 9,685
Zerc Balance Account - Payroll {25,393) 477,679
Vineyard Bank CU - Agricultural Pool 413,970
Local Agency Investment Fund - Sacramento 2,800,481
TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 121312005 $ 3,692,630
TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 11/30/2005 5,381,977
PERICD INCREASE (DECREASE) $ {1,689,347)
CHANGE IN CASH POSITION DUE TO:
Decrease/(Increase) in Assets: Accounts Receivable $ (487,847}
Assessments Receivable {10,842,0389)
Prepaid Expenses, Deposits & Other Current Assels -
(Decrease)increase in Liabilities Accounts Payable (717,325}
Accrued Payroll, Payroll Taxes & Other Current Liabilities 3,218
Transfer to/{irom) Reserves 10,354,450
PERIOD INCREASE (DECREASE) $ {1,689,347)
Zero Balance
Petty Govt'l Checking Account Vineyard Local Agency
Cash Demand Payroll Savings Bank Investment Funds Totals
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS:
Balances as of 11/30/2005 $ 500 3% 135653 §$ {27,080y & 9672 & 412,751 § 4,850,481 § 5,381,977
Depaosits - 271,788 - 13 1,219 - 273,020
Transfers - 1,978,427 71,573 - - {2,050,000) -
Withdrawals/Checks - {1,892,481) {69,886) - - - (1,962,367}
Balances as of 12/31/2005 5 500 $ 493387 § {25393) & 9,685 § 413570 § 2,800,481 3 3,682,630
PERIOD INCREASE OR {DECREASE) $ - $ 357,734 § 1,687 § 13 3 1,219 § {2,050,000) $ (1,689,347}




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD
DECEMBER 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2005

INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS
Effective Days fo Inferest Maturity
Date Transaction Depository Activity Redesemed Maturity Rate(*) Yield
12/5/2005 Withdrawal LALF. $ (500,000}
12/8/2005 Withdrawal LALF. $ {350,000}
12/22/2005 Withdrawal L.ALF. {1,200,000)
TOTAL INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS $ (2,050,000} -

* The earnings rate for L.ALF. is a daily variable rate; 3.63% was the effective yield rate at the Quarter ended December 31, 2005

INVESTMENT STATUS
December 31, 2005
Principal Number of Interest Maturity
Financial Institution Amount Days Rate Date
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 2,800,481
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 2,800,481

Funds on hand are sufficient to meet all foreseen and planned Administrative and project expenditures during the next six months.

All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in Chino Basin Watermaster's Investment
Policy.

Respectfully submitted,

Sheri M. Rojo, CPA

Chief Financial Officer & Assistant General Manager
Chinc Basin Watermaster

Qr\Financiat Statements\05-06\05 Dec\[Treasurers Report.xls]Sheetd




5:45 PM GHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

0210206 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2005
Jui-Dec 05 Budget % Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary income/Expense
income

4010 - Local Agency Subsidies 19,879 132,000 ~112,121 15.06%
4110 - Admin Asmnts-Apprap Pool 4,781,347 4,804,121 -22,774 99.53%
4120 - Admin Asmnis-Non-Agri Pool 66,160 73,425 -7,265 90.11%
4700 - Non Operating Revenues 111,779 78,330 33,445 142.7%
Total iIncome 4,979,166 5,087,876 -108,710 97.86%
Gross Profit 4,979,166 5,087,876 -108,710 97.86%

Expense
6010 - Salary Costs 225,436 404,153 -178,717 55.78%
6020 - Dffice Bullding Expense 42 696 97,850 -55,154 43.63%
6030 - Office Supplies & Equip. 12,183 47,500 -35,317 25.65%
6040 - Postage & Printing Costs 37,933 75,700 -37,767 50.11%
8050 - Information Services 55,930 103,500 -37,570 63.7%
6060 - Contract Services 1,930 130,500 -128,561 1.48%
6080 - Insurance -691 24,210 -24,901 -2.86%
6110 - Dues and Subscriptions 2,502 14,000 -11,498 17.87%
6140 - WM Admin Expenses 794 6,500 -5,706 12.22%
6150 - Field Supplles -1,832 4,050 -5,882 -45.23%
6170 * Travel & Transportation 44,240 45,200 -850 97.88%
6190 - Conferences & Seminars 5,632 17,500 -11,B68 32.19%
6200 - Advisory Comm - Wi Board 7,153 14,082 -6,928 50.8%
£300 - Watermaster Board Expenses 19,032 28,782 -10,750 53.8%
8300 - Appr PLWM & Pool Admin 9,777 15,347 -5,570 63.71%
8400 + Agri Pool-WM & Pool Admin 10,223 18,756 -8,533 54.51%
8467 - Agri-Pool Legal Services 53,269 45,000 8,269 118.38%
8470 - Ag Meeting Altend -Special 6,150 10,000 -3,850 81.5%
8500 - Non-Ag PI-WM & Pool Admin 2,174 7.423 5,249 29.29%
6500 - Education Funds Use Expens 375 375 0 100.0%
9500 - Aflocated G&A Expenditures -166,018 -378,284 192,266 48.17%
358,900 733,144 . -374,244 48.95%
§900 - Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 585,756 986,767 -411,011 5B.77%
6950 - Mutual Agency Projects 15,755 75,000 -58,245 21.01%
9501 - G&A Expenses Aflocated-OBMP 64,502 109,541 -45,039 58.88%
666,013 1,181,308 -515,295 56.38%
7101 - Production Monitoring 28,178 68,755 ~40,577 40.98%
7402 - insline Meter Installation 16,575 97,954 -81,379 16.92%
7103 + Grdwir Quality Monitoring 35,097 66,503 -31,406 52.78%
7104 - Gdwtr Level Manitoring 51,866 184,812 -132,946 28.06%
7105 - Sur Wir Qual Monltoring 6,445 90,223 -83,774 7.15%
7106 - Wtr Level Sensors Install 0 5,734 5,734 0.0%
7107 - Ground Leve! Monitoring 75,679 554,825 -479,146 13.64%
7108 - Hydrauiic Control Monitoring 132,588 405,368 -362,779 26.77%
7409 + Recharge & Well Monitoring Prog 81,442 133,061 -51,619 61.21%
7200 - PE2- Comp Recharge Pom 146,305 759,105 -612,800 18.27%

Page 1of 2



5:45 PM CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

02/02/06 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through December 2005
Jul - Dec 05 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
7300 - PE3&5-Water Supply/Desalte 3ag 12,548 -12,209 2.7%
7400 - PE4- Mgmt Plan 81,207 1,081,014 -988,807 7.51%
7500 - PE6&7-CoopEfforts/SaltMgmt 48,275 255,769 -209,494 18.09%
7600 - PEB&9-StorageMygmt/Conj Use 5,933 77,268 -71,335 7.68%
7690 - Recharge Improvement Debt Pymt 0 300,000 -366,600 0.0%
7700 + Inactive Well Protection Prgm 0 12,128 ~12,128 0.0%
9502 - G&A Expenses Aliocated-Projects 121,515 268,742 -147,227 45.22%
829,450 4,463,809 -3,634,358 18.58%
Total Expense 1,854,363 6,378,261 -4,523,898 28.07%
Net Ordinary Income 3,124,803 -1,280,385 4,415,188 -242.16%

Other Incomel/Expense
Other Income

4231 - MZ1 Assigned Water Sales & 600,000 -600,000 0.0%
4210 - Approp Pool-Replenishment 6,635,085 0 6,635,065 100.0%
Total Other income 6,635,065 600,000 6,035,065 1,105.84%
Other Expense
5010 - Groundwater Replenishment 4,007 547 699,000 3,308,547 573.33%
9999 - To/{From) Reserves 5,752,322 -1,389,385 7,141,707 -414,02%
Total Other Expense 9,759,868 -690,385 10,450,253 -1,413.69%
Net Other Income -3,124,803 1,280,385 -4,415,188 -242.16%
Net Income 0 0 0 0.0%
Page 2 of 2




. CONSENT CALENDAR

C. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Basic Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

Year ended June 30, 2005

41



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Basic Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

Year ended June 30, 2005

TABLE OF CONTENILS

Independent Auditors’ Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)
Basic Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Supplementary Information:

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Working Capital -
For the Period July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Working Capital -
For the Period July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004

o 9~ O

19

20



@ONP\AD AND CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ASSOCIATES, e B CALFORNIA 97612

{949) 4742020
Fax (949} 263-5520

Board of Directors
Chino Basin Watermaster
Rancho Cucamonga, California

Independent Auditors® Report

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Chino Basin Watermaster as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These

basic financial statements are the responsibility of Chino Basin Watermaster’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an oplon on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial stafements. An audit also includes amssessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Tn our opinion, the basic fnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Chino Basin Watermaster as of June 30, 2005 and the results of
its operations and the cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principies
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as management 's discussion
and analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements that
collectively comprise the Chino Basin Watermaster’s basic financial statements. The
supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the basic financial
statements and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the examination of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

L A oz - /%s ver'afog Llr®

August 19, 2005

1

MEMBERS OF AICPA AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS PRIVATE COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION



44

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

0641 San Bemardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730
Tel: 908.484.3888 Fax: 908.484.3890 www.cbwm.org

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BACKGROUND

The Chino Basin Watermaster {Watermaster) was established under a Judgment entered in the Superior Court
of the State of California for the Gounty of San Bernardino, entitled “Chino Basin Municipal Water District v.
City of Chino, et al.,” (originaily Case No. SCV 164327, the file was transferred in August 1989 and asslgned a
new Case No. RCV 51010). The judgment prescribes Watermaster's authorlties and specifies classes of
water production assessments o be used io fund cerain activities. Those assessment categories are.
administration, OBMP, special project and replenishment. Each class of assessment has a prescribed
purpuse and water production base. Assessment revenue is Watermaster's principal source of income.

Watermaster's aoperating revenues include not only funds for administrative, OBMP, special project and
replenishment expenses collected in accordance with the annual budget, but also includes money collected by
appropriators to help pay for improvements to recharge basins within our boundaries and confributions
received on behalf of expenditures related to cooperative projects as approved through the budget process.

The Unrestricted Net Asset amount listed on the Statement of Net Assets includes assessments on production
of waler in excess of production rights. These funds will be used o purchase replenishment water to mitigate
annual overdraft in the coming year,

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To comply with new government accounting standards, all of Watermasters assessment funds have been
compiled into a single set of comprehensive interrelated financial statements. The financial statements that
accompany this report include Statement of Net Assets, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Assets, and Statements of Cash Flows. Also included are various notes providing additional explanation
and detail relating to this financial information.

The Statement of Net Assets lists Watermaster's total assets, fiabilities, and net assets, or the amount of
assets free of debt, as of June 30, 2005. The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
list Watermaster's income for the year compared to its expenses, Additionally, these statements identify the
gain or loss in net assets for 2005. Finally, the Statements of Cash Flows indicate how cash was received and
spent throughout the past year, highlighting the net change in cash and investments for 2005.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the year ended June 30, 2605, Watermaster's Total Net Assets was $8,843,808. This baiance includes
cash that will be required to purchase water to meet {he replenishment obligation incurred during the previous
fiscal year.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2005
{With comparative totals for June 30, 2004)

2006 2004
Assets
Current $ 9,770,452 % B,067,186
Capital 78,479 106,641
Total Assets 0,849,631 5,073,827
Liabilities
Current 040,226 535,428
Non current 65,597 46,691
Total Liabilities 1,005,823 582,119
Net Asseis
invested in capital assets 78,179 106,641
Unrestricted B, 764,620 8,385,067
Total Net Assets % B.A43,808 38491708

REVIEW OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Administrative assessmeni revenue increased from the prior year by 3.1%. There was a significant
increase in muiual agency project revenues over the prior year attributable o contributions from other
agencles relating fo cost sharing and financial contribulions related to Watermaster's monitoring
programs. Replenishment assessment revenue also increased 96.6% due lo a significant increase in
production in excess of rights.

Although there was a slight decrease in administrative expenditures, overall operating expenses
{excluding replenishment activities) increased over the prior year from $4,389,120 fo $5,087,880. This
increase in expenses relates to budgeted increases in monitoring costs, hydraulic control related costs
and general OBMP related expenditures.

Non-operating revenue represented interest income of $211,585 and $91,863 for the years ending
June 30, 2005 and June 30, o004, This increase In income relates directly to the substantial increase in
the deposits held to purchase replenishment water.

The financial condition of the Watermaster changed as indicated by the change in the Net Assets from
the prior year in the amount of $352,100.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2005

(With comparative totals for June 30, 2004)

COMPARISON OF FY 2004-2005 ADMINISTRATION BUDG

2005 2004
Operating Revenues
Administrative assessments {note 1) g 4,881,245 % 4,736,516
Mutual agency project revenue 895,836 301,209
Replenishment water 8,097,108 4,135,998
MZ1 supplemental water assessments 1,625,000 1,585,854
Miscellaneous revenue 3,865 -
Totat Operating Reventles 15,503,054 10,758,577
Operating Expenses
Watermaster administration 707,233 726,638
Depreciation 27 462 28,804
Pacl, Advisory and Board administration 151,477 311,099
Educational - 375
Optimum Basin Management Plan 4,144 077 3,240,788
Mutual agency project costs 57,631 81,416
Groundwater replenishment 10,125,526 084,671
MZ1 imported water 149,143 B70,623
Total Operating Expenses 15,362,549 6,244 414
income from operations 140,505 4515163
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest 211,595 81,883
Total Nonoperating Revenues 211,585 91,863
Change in net assets 352,100 4,607,026
Net assets at beginning of year, as restated 3,491,708 3,884,682
Total net assets at end of year 8,843,808 $ 8491708

ET TO ACTUAL REVENUES/EXPENSE

The revenue exceeded budget primarily from assessments related to replenishment obligations incurred and
hecause actual cash on hand at the end of the fiscal year which was used to offset assessments, was less than
forecasied when the budget was prepared.

Actual operating expenses fell short of the budg‘et while the replenishment water purchases exceeded the

budgeted amount, This was due to a reduction in planned expenses related to certain management zones
within the basin.

Administration recorded an increase in change In net assets for the year ending June 30, 2005, compared o a
budgeted loss $1,618,993 million. This planned operating deficit was the result of a budgeted usage of
accumulated net assets.



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Statement of Net Assets

Tune 30, 2005

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2004)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and investments (note 2)

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assels:

Capital assets, net of accumulated de

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Acorued salaries and benefits

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences {note 4)

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to th

preciation (note 3)

5

Total

2004

$ 8,795,321
941,025
34,106

8,763,233
167,905
36,048

9,770,452

8,967,186

79,179

106,641

79,179

106,641

9,849,631

9,073,827

904,450
35,776

527,307
8,121

940,226

535,428

65,597

46,691

65,597

46,691

1,005,823

582,119

79,179
8,764,629

106,641
8,385,067

$ 8,843,808

8,491,708

e basic financial statements.

47



48

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended June 30, 2005

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2004)

Operating revenues:

Administrative assessments (note 1)
Mutual agency project revenue
Replenishment water

MZ1 supplemental water assessments
Miscellaneous revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Watermaster administration
Depreciation

Pool, advisory and Board administration
Educational

Optimum Basin Management Plan
Mutual agency project costs
Groundwater replenishment

MZ1 imported water

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest income
Total nonoperating revenues

Change in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Total net assets at end of year

Total 2004
$ 4,881,245 4,736,516
895,836 301,209
8,097,108 4,135,998
1,625,000 1,585,854

3,865 -
15,503,054 10,759,577
707,233 726,638
27,462 28,804
151,477 311,099
. 375
4144077 3,240,788
57,631 81,416
10,125,526 984,671
149,143 870,623
15,362,549 6,244,414
140,505 4,515,163
211,595 91,863
211,595 91,863
352,100 4,607,026
8,491,708 3,884,682
$ 8,843,808 8,491,708

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

6




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended June 30, 2065

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2004)

Total 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 4,108,125 4,603,399
Cash received from other agencies 899,702 301,209
Cash received from replenishment water 8,097,108 4,135,998
Cash received from MZ1 supplemental water assessments 1,625,000 1,585,854
Cash paid to employees for services (884,016) (923,670}
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services (14,025,426) (5,401,274)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (179,507) 4,301,516
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Acqusition of capital assets - (90,177)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital financing activities - (90,177)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Inierest received 211,595 01,863
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 211,595 01,863
Net increase (decrease) in cash 32,088 4,303,202
Cash and investments at the beginning of year 8,763,233 4,460,031
Cash and investments at the end of year $ 8,795,321 8,763,233

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
used for operating activities:
Operating incoime $ 140,505 4,515,163
Adjustment {o reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash used for operating activities:

Depreciation 27,462 28,804
(Increase) dercease in accounts receivable (773,120)  (133,117)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 1,942 (4,173)
Increase (decrease) in account payable 377,143 (77,796)
Tncrease {decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits 27,655 (14,595)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 18,906 (12,770)
Net cash used for operating activities $ (179,507) 4,301,516

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

There were no noncash investing, capital or financing activities during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

7



50

(B

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Reporting Entity and Summary of Sipnificant Accounting Policies

Description of Reporting Entity

The Chino Basin Watermaster (“Watermaster”) was established under a judgment entered
in Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Bemardino as a result
of Case No. RCV 51010 (formerly Case No. SCV 164327) entitled “Chino Basin
Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, et al.”, signed by the Honorable Judge Howard
B. Wiener on January 27, 1978. The effective date of this Judgment for accounting and
operations was July 1, 1977.

Pursuant to the Judgment, the Chino Basin Municipal Water District (CBMWD) five
member Board of Directors was initially appointed as “Watermaster”. Their term of
appointment as Watermaster was for five years, and the Court, by subsequent orders,
provides for successive terms Of for a successor Watermaster. Pursuant to a
recommendation of the Advisory Committee, the Honorable J. Michael Gunn appointed a
nine-member board as Watermaster on September 28, 2000.

Under the Judgment, three Pool commitiees were formed: (1) Overlying (Agricultural)
Pool which includes the State of California and all producers of water for overlying uses
other than industrial or commercial purposes; (2) Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool
which represents producers of water for overlying industrial or commercial purposes; and
(3) Appropriative Pool which represents cities, districts, other public or private entities
and utilities. The three Pools act together to form the “ Advisory Commitiee”.

The Watermaster provides the Chino Groundwater Basin service area with services which
primarily include: accounting for water appropriations and components of acre-footage
of stored water by agency, purchase of replenishment water, groundwater monitoring and
implementation of special projects.

Watermaster expenditures are allocated to the pools based on the prior year’s production
volume (or the same percentage used to set the annual assessments). Allocations for fiscal
year 2004-05 expenses are based on the 2003-04 production volume.

2003-04
Acre Feet %
Production Volume:
Appropriative Pool 136,795 75291
Agricultural Pool 41,978 23.105
Non-Agricultural Pool 2,915 1.604
Total Production Volume 181.688 100.000



48]

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Reporting Eatity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

The Agricultural Pool members ratified an agreement with the Appropriative Pool at their
meeting of June 16, 1988, wherein the Appropriative Pool assumes Agricultural Pool
administrative expenses and special project cost allocations in exchange for an
accelerated transfer of unpumped agricultural water to the Appropriative Pool. In addition
the Agricultural Pool transferred all pool administrative reserves at June 30, 1988 to the
Appropriative Pool effective July 1, 1988.

In July of 2000, the principal parties in the Basin sipned an apreement, known as the
Peace Agreement, which among other things formalized the commitment of the Basin
parties to implement an Optimum Basin Management Program. The Peace Agreement
was signed by all of the parties, and the Court has approved the agreement and ordered
the Watermaster to proceed in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The Court
has approved revisions to the Chino Basin Watermaster Rules and Regulations.

Basis of Accounting

The Watermaster is accounted for as an enterprise fund (proprietary fund type). A fund is
an accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established to record the
financial position and results of operations of a specific governmental activity. The
activities of enterprise funds closely resemble those of ongoing businesses in which the
purpose is to conserve and add to basic resources while meeting operating expenses from
current revenues. Enterprise funds account for operations that provide services on a
continuous basis and are substantially financed by revenues derived from user charges.
The Watermaster utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred.

Cash and Investments

Tnvestments are reported in the accompanying balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair
value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as interest income reported for that
fiscal year.

Watermaster pools cash and investments of all fund balance reserves. Interest income
earned by the pooled investments is allocated quarterly to the various reserves based on
each reserve’s average cash and investments balance.

Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-
term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of
cash or so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value
because of changes in interest rates, and have an original maturity date of three months or
less.



(1)

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. ( Continued)

(2)

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated
historical cost where no historical records exist. The Watermaster capitalizes all assets
with a historical cost of at least $5,000 and a useful life of at least three years. The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Computer equipment and software 5 years
Office furniture and fixtures 7 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Automotive equipment 7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assts and liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Appropriative Interest Revenue Allocation

On August 30, 1979, the Appropriative Pool unanimously approved assessment
procedures whereby any interest eamed from the Watermaster assessments paid by
Appropriative Pool members would reduce the total current assessment due from those
members. Fiscal year 2003-04 interest revenue was allocated to the Appropriative Pool,
resulting in a reduction of the 2004-05 assessments. The amount of administrative
assessment received for the year ended June 30, 2005 was 54,881,245,

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2005 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of net assets:

Cash and investments $ 8,795.321
Total cash and investments 3 8795321
10



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Cash and Investmenis. {Contimied)

(Continued}

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2005 consist of the following:

Cagh on hand

Deposits with financial institutions

Investmenis

Total cash and investments

$ 500
522,554
8,272,267

$ 8.795.321

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Watermaster’s

Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Watermaster by
the California Government Code and the Watermaster’s investment policy. The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the Watermaster’s
investment policy, if more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and

concentration of credit risk.

Investment Types
Authorized by State Law

Local Agency Bonds

1.8, Treasury Obligations

U.S. Agency Securities

Banker's Acceptances
Commercial Paper

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements

Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Medium-Term Notes

Mutual Funds

Money Market Mutual Funds
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities
County Pooled Investment Funds

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
JPA Pools (other investment pools)

Authorized
By

Maximum

Investment "Maximum  Percentage

Policy = Maturity Of Portfolio
Yes 5 years None
Yes 5 years None
Yes 5 years None
Yes 180 days 40%
Yes 270 days 25%
Yes 5 years 30%
Yes 1 year None
Yes 92 days 20% of base value
Yes 5 years 30%
Yes N/A 20%
Yes N/A 20%
Yes 5 years 20%
Yes N/A None
Yes N/A None
Yes N/A None

*Maximum
Investment

In One Issuer

None
None
None
30%

10%
None
None
None
None

10%

10%
None
None
None
None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive.

11

Cu}




)

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Cash and Investments, {Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways
fliat the Watermaster manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly
over {ime as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Watermaster’s investments
(including investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Watermaster’s
investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Total 12 Months 13-24 25-60
Investment Type Amount Or Less Months Months
State investment pool $8.272.267 8.272.267 - -
Total 58,272,267 8.272.267 - -

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization, Presented below is the minimum
rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the Watermaster’s
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each
investment type.

Rating as of Year End
Minimum
Total Legal Not
Investment Type Amount Rating AAA Aa Rated
State investment pool  $8.272.267 N/A - - 8.272.267
Total $8.272.267 N/A - - 8.272.267

12



2

)

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for invesiments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the Watermaster’s investment policy
do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits:
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits
made by governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by
a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of
the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure Watermaster deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

Invesiment in State Investment Pool

The Watermaster is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
that is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer
of the State of California. The fair value of the Watermaster’s investment in this pool is
reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the
Watermaster’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on
an amortized cost basis.

13



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

3 Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:
Balances at Balances at
Jupe 30,2004  Additions Deletions June 30. 2005
Computer equipment and
software 349,768 - - 49,768
Office furniture and fixtures 36,371 - - 36,371
Leasehold improvements 23,443 - - 23,443
Automotive equipment 72,173 - (23,299) 55.874
Total costs of depreciable assets 188.755 - {23.29%) 165,436
Less accumulated depreciation:
Computer equipment and
software {26,418) {9,954) . (36,372)
Office furniture and fixtures (6,237) (5,196) - (11,433)
Leasehold improvements {2,344) (2,344) - (4,688)
Automotive equipment {47.115) (9.968) 23,299 (33.784)
Total accumnulated depreciation (82.114) {27.462) 23,289 (86.277)
Net capital assets 5106.641 (27.462) - 79,179
{4) Compensated Absences

Permanent Watermaster employees earn from 10 to 20 vacation days a year, depending
upon their length of employment and 12 sick days a year. Employees may carry vacation
days forward up to the equivalent number of days carned in the immediately preceding
twenty-four (24) month period. There is no maximum accumulation of sick leave; and
upon retirement oI resipnation at age 55 or greater, employees with continuous
employment for a minimum of twenty (20) years are compensated for all accumulated
sick leave at 50% of their rate of pay at termination. Other employees are paid based
upon length of employment and age at time of retirement or resignation. The amount of
compensated absences outstanding as of June 30, 2005 was $65,597.

14




(5)

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)

Deferred Compensation Plan

(6)

The Watermaster has established deferred compensation plans for all employees of
Watermaster in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457, whereby employees
authorize the Watermaster to defer a portion of their salary to be deposited in individual
investment accounts. Participation in the plans is voluntary and may be revoked at any
time upon advance written notice. Generally, the amount of compensation subject to
deferral until retirement, disability, or other termination by a participant may not exceed
the lesser of $12,000 or 33.33% of includible compensation, or 25% of gross
compensation. Amounts withheld by Watermaster under this plan are deposited regularly
with California Public Employees’ Retirement System. The Watermaster makes no
contribution under the plan. As of June 30, 2005, the deferred compensation plan assets
were held in trust accounts for the sole benefit of the employees and their beneficiaries,
and accordingly have been excluded from Watermaster's reported assets.

Operating Lease

The Watermaster entered into a new lease for rent of office space on September 1, 2003,
expiring August 30, 2013. The amount paid under this lease was $60,455 for the year
ended June 30, 2005. The future minimum lease payments for this lease are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2006 $ 58,800
2007 58,800
2008 58,800
2009 58,800
2010 58,800
2011 58,800
2012 58,800
2013 58.800

Total £470.400
15

-~




(N

CHING BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes {o the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (PERS)

The Chino Basin Watermaster contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension
plan. PERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State of California. Copies of PERS’ annual
financial report may be obtained from its executive office at 400 “P” Street, Sacramento,
California 95814,

Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary. The
Watermaster makes the contribution required by the employees on their behalf and for
their account. The Watermaster is required to contribute at an actuarially delermined rate.
The current rate is 11.146% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
plan members and the Watermaster are established and may be amended by PERS.

Under GASB 27, an employer reports an annual pension cost (APC) equal to the annual
required contribution (ARC) plus an adjustment for the cumulative difference between
the APC and the employer’s actual plan contributions for the year. The cumulative
difference is called the net pension obligation (NPO). The ARC for the period July 1,
2004 to June 30, 2005 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of
June 30, 2002. The contribution rate indicated for the period is 14.262% of payroll for
the Retirement Program. In order to caloulate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in
financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2005, this contribution rate would be
multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that was actually paid during the period
July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005.

A summary of principle assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown
below.

Valuation Date June 30, 2002

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll

Average Remaining Period 9 Years as of the Valuation Date
Asset Valuation Method 3 Year Smoothed Market
Actuarial Assumptions

Investment Rate of Retarn  8.25% (net of administrative expenses)

Projected Salary Increases  3.75% to 14.20% depending on Age,
Service, and type of employment

Inflation 3.50%

Payroll Growth 3.75%

Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by duration of
employment coupled with an assumed
annual inflation component of 3.5%
and an annual production growth of
0.25%.

16



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(N Defined Benefit Pension Plan (PERS). (Continued)
Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s
date of entry into CalPERS. Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as a level
percent of pay over a closed 20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the operation
of the plan are amortized over a rolling period, which results in an amortization of 10% of
unamortized gains and losses each year. If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the
actuarial value of plan assets, then the amortization period may not be lower than the
payment calculated over a 30 year amortization period.
The Schedule of Funding Progress below shows the recent history of the actuarial value
of assets, actuarial accrued liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the
unfunded accrued liability to payroll.
Required Supplementary Information
Retirement Program
Entry Age Unfunded
Normal Actuarial  Liability/ Annual *UAAL
Valvation  Accrued Value (Excess Funded Covered Asa%of
Date Liability of Assets Agssets) Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/01 $192,850 178,838 14,052 92.7% 291,502 4.8%
6/30/02 294,441 262,540 31,901 89.2% 517,200 6.2%
6/30/03 419,723 391,922 27,801 03.4% 476,486 5.8%
*  UAAL refers to unfunded actuarial accrued liability.
Information for the June 30, 2004 valuation date was not available for inclusion in the
financial statements,
(8)___ Project Commitments

Under a financing agreement developed pursuant to the OBMP Recharge Master Plan, the
Watermaster is obligated to pay for one-half of the fixed project costs for certain recharge
facilities in the Chino Basin area that are being constructed fo increase the recharge of
imported water, storm water, and recycled water 1o the Chino Groundwater Basin. The
recharge facilities being constructed will be owned by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency
pursuant to a Recharge Operations Agreement. When complete, the recharge project will
enable the Watermaster to increase annual recharge supplemental water to the Chino
Groundwater Basin. In addition, stormwater and recycled water recharge would be
increased. Fixed project costs include construction costs, debt service on the related bond
financing and reserves for repair, replacement, improvement and debt service.

17



)

o

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

18



61

Administeslive Revenues
Adminisimtive Assessments
Interest Revenue
Mutual Agency Project Revenue
Misceilanecus ncome

‘Totat Revenues

Admimistrative & Project Expenditures
Waiermaster Administrabion
Watermaster Board-Advisory Cemmitice
Peaol Admipistnition
Opumum Basin Mgnt Administration
(JBMP Project Cosis
Education Funds Use
Mutual Ageacy Project Costs

Tatal Admmistrative/OBMP Expenscs

Net Administrotive/OBMP Income

Allocate Net Admin Income Te Pagls
Allocate Net OBMT Income To Pools
Agricultural Expense Transfer
Tolai Expenses
Net Adminisirative Income

Other Incame/{Expense)
Repienishment Water Purchases
MZ! Supplementnt Water Assessments
Waler Purchases
MZ1 Imported Water Purchase
Groundwater Replenishment
Net Other Incoime

Neit Trangfers To/(From) Reserves

Working Capital, July 1, 2004
Workiag Capital, Bad Of Period

03/04 Production
23/34 roduction Fercentages

CHING BASRN WATERMASTER

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes m Working Capnizl (by subfund)

For the Pesiod July 1. 2004 through June 30, 2605

OPTIMUM PO, ADMINISTRATION AND SPECIAL PROJECTS, | GROUNDWATER OPERATIONS
WATERMASTER BASIN APPROPRIATIVE  AGRICULTURAL ~ NON-AGRIC. ~GROUMDWATER ~— §5B222 EDUCATIOM GRAND BUDGET
ADMINISTRATION _MANAGEMENT POOL POOL POOL REPLEMISHMENT _FUNDS __ FUNDS TOTALS 2004-05
4,807,004 74,241 1891295  53.954.888
193,951 11,148 6,453 43 211595 78,330
495,836 895,836 -
3,865 3,865 -
3865 895836 5,000,955 11,148 80,694 - X 43 5.002,501 4063218
734,695 734,695 623,784
47,159 47,159 37018
13,459 87,794 3,065 104318 91.153
1.265.673 1265673 1,019,183
2878404 2878404 3733694
. . 375
57,631 57,631 §0.004
839,285 4144077 13.459 57,794 3,065 " TORT.BE0  SSB3211
(835.,620) 3.248,241)
335,620 529,148 193,066 13,406 . -
3248241 2.445,639 750491 52,111 . -
1,020,199 (1,020,199} . .
4. 108,446 11,152 68,581 - - - S 087880 _ 5.563 211
892,509 0] 12113 L) T04.661_(1.519.953)
5.097.108 8,097.i08 -
1,625,000 1625000 2,i79.500
- {2I78.500)
(10.274,569) {10,274 669) -
- - - (552.561) - - {553,561 {99,000)
892,509 (4) 12,113 (552,561} - 43 32100 (L.618.990)
3.560.227 463055 174.920 4,133,060 158,751 2,195 8491708
§452,738 963,051 187,033 3,580,490 _ 158351 3,238 §.843.808
£16,795,139 41.978.182 2914774 181,688,095
75291% 23,105% 1.604% 100.000%



L

0z

Adnunistrative Revenues
Admimistrative Assessments
Inierest Revenue
Mutual Agency Project Revenue

Total Revenues

Administrative & Project Expenditures
Weiemmaster Adminisiration
Watermaster Board-Advisory Commitiee
Pool Adminisimiion
Qplimum Basin Mgnt Administration
OBMP Project Cosls
Education Funds Use
Mutual Agency Project Casts

Total Administrative/CBMP Expenscs

Net Administrative/OBMP Income

Aliocate Net Admin Income Te Pools
Alpcate Net OBMP Income To Pools
Agncultural Expense Transfer
Tota] Expenses
Net Aéministrative Income

Other Income/(Expense)
Reglenishment Weter Puschases
MZI1 Supplemental Water Assessmeats
Walcr Puzchases
MZ1 Imporied Water Purchase
Groundwater Replemishment
Net Other Income

Net Transfers To/(From) Reserves

Warking Capital, July 1, 2003, As Restated
Warking Capital, End Of Penjod

(2/03 Production
02/03 Production Fercentages

CHING BASIN WATERMASTER

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Working Capital (by subfund}

Far the Period July 1, 2003 through Juae 30, 2004

OBTIMUM POOL ADMINISTRATION AND SPECIAL PROJECTS | GROUNDWATER OPERATIONS
WATERMASTER BASIN  PPROPRIATIVE ~ AGRICUTTURAL NON-AGRIC. GROUNDWATER — S5B222  EDUCATION GRAMND BUBGET
ADMINISTRATION MANAGEMENT POOL POOL POOL REPLENISHMENT _ FUNDS FUNDS TOTALS 200304
4,614,056 122,460 4736516 53940516
81,090 7111 3,624 38 91,863 112,025
301,209 361,209 -

- 301209 3.695.146 710 \ 26,084 . - 38 539,588 4052541
755442 755442 617,732
47,569 47,569 43,442

13,796 246,513 3,221 263.530 255,148
932,272 932172 1034084
2,308,516 2308516 3,365,079
375 375 375
81416 1416 85.004
BB4.A27 240,788 13.796 716,513 3221 375 T389,130 5.400,844
(§83,427) (2,930,579}
884,427 656,109 202,129 26,149 . -
2.939.579 2,180,717 671,817 §7,046 . .
1,110,333 (1,110,333} . .
7 960,955 10.125 11645 - . 375 3389.120 5400844
734,191 YT G636 RETH) 740468 (1.398.303)
4.135,998 4,135.998 .
1.585.854 1585854 2,189,500
- 2,373.500)
{1,855.294) (1,855,204 -
. - 5 3.866.358 . - 3,866,556 {84,000)
734,191 {3.014) 9628 3,866,558 - 337 4607,026 (1,432,303}
3826016 466,069 165,292 266,502 158251 2,532 3,584,682
3 560,27 463,053 174,920 4,133,060 158.251 7195 §497.708
121,586,420 37.457.315 4,853.247 163.996.982
74.185% 22 854% 2.961% 100.600%



lll. REPORTS/UPDATES

B. WATERMASTER ENGINEERING
CONSULTANT REPORT

1. Evaluation of the Cumulative Effects of Transfers
Pursuant to the Peace Agreement




5 EVALUATION OF THE CUMULATIVE EFFECTS OF TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO THE PEACE
AGREEMENT

5.1 Background

DPortions of Sections 5.1 and 5.3 of the Peace Agreement contain the basic Watermaster commitments to
evaluate the transfers of water in storage or water rights that are used in place of the physical recharge of
water to Chino Basin. The Peace Agreement and its lmplementation Plan commit Watermaster to make
an evaluation of transfers and the Watermaster Rules and Regulations further define the evaluation to
include the “cumulative impacts of Transfers, if any.” This analysis focuses on Watermaster’s
implementation of the following portions of these documents:

“5.1 {¢) Watermaster shall exercise Best Efforts to (see Peace Agreement pages 20-21)

{iv) evaluate the potential or threat for any Material Physical Injury to any party to the
Judgment or the Chino Basin, including, but not limited to, any Material Physical Injury
that may result from any Transfer of water in storage or water rights which is proposed in
place of physical Recharge of water to Chino Basin in accordance with the provisions of
Section 3.3;"

(v) ensure a proper accounting of all sources of Recharge to the Chino Basin;
5.3 (b} {see Peace Agreement pages 32 and 33)

(i) There shall be a rebuttable presumption that the Transfer and the Production by the
transferee does not result in Material Physical Injury to a party to the Judgment or the
Basir;

(iv) Watermaster shall base any decision to approve or disapprove any proposed Transfer
upon the record afier considering potential impacts associated with the individual
Transfer alone and without regard to impacts attributable to any other Transfers;

5.3(c) Watermaster shall allow Producers to lease water rights to make up for the lessee’s over-
Production.”

Pursuant to the above and other Sections of the Peace Agreement, transfers of water have been occurring
since the Peace Agreement was signed (and have occurred since the Judgment was signed). Some of these
transfers have resulted in an avoidance of a replenishment obligation or the physical recharge of water,
for the Producer undertaking to lease or purchase the water.

The Implementation Plan in Exhibit B to the Peace Agreement contains similar language to the Peace
Agreement regarding 5.1 (), but is mostly silent as to schedule for implementation of the specific
commitments above (see Exhibit B, paragraph 11 on page 20 and the implementation schedule on pages
22 and 23). Paragraph 5 (i) on page 19 of Exhibit B includes additional guidelines that Watermaster
must consider:

“The need to continue physical recharge under this paragraph [6,500 affyr of supplemental water in MZ1]
shall be evaluated by Watermaster after the conclusion of fiscal year 2004-2005. In evaluating further
physical recharge pursuant to this paragraph, Watermaster shall take into account the provisions of this
Article, the Judgment and the OBMP among all other relevant factors. Except as to Watermaster's
determination of no material physical injury, the rights of each party to the Judgment to purchase or lease
water to meet its over production obligation shall be unaffected by this provision;”

Judy 2005

f=1]
[N




OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM DRAFT REPORT
SECTION 5
EVALUATION OF THE CUMULATIVE EFFECTS OF TRANSEERS PURSUANT TO THE PEACE AGREEMENT

Page 21 of Exhibit B also commits Watermaster to:

“(dy evaluate the potential or threat for any material physical injury to any party to the Judgment or the
Chino Basin, including, but not limited to, any material physical injury thal may result from any
transfer of water in storage or water rights which is proposed in place of physical recharge of
water to Chino Basin in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.3;

{e) establish and periodically update criteria for the use of water from different sources for
replenishment purposes;

{H ensure a proper accounting of all sources of recharge to the Chino Basin;”

Section 7 of the Watermaster Rules and Regulations repeats the commitments of the Peace Agreement
and lmplementation Plan and adds Section 9.2 (e) and 9.3 (see Rules and Regulations, page 55):

“e) Transfers which occur between the same parties in the same year shall be considered as a single
Transfer for the purpose of determining Material Physical Injury.

9.3 inteprated Watermaster Review. In reviewing Transfers under these Rules and Regulations, Watermaster
shall exercise reasonable discretion. Watermaster shall review each proposed Transfer based upon the
record before it and considering the potential impacts of the proposed Transfer alone. However,
Watermaster shall also consider the cumulative impacts of Transfers generally when carrying out its
responsibilities to implement the OBMP and Recharge and monitoring programs authorized by these Rules
and Regulations or the Judgment,

{(a) Watermaster will evaluate the cumulative physical impact of Transfers on the Basin, if any, by
July 1, 2003, and a minimuin of once every two years thereafter.

(b) Watermaster will take the resulis of its evaluation into account when carrying out its obligations
under section 7.1 of these Rules and Regulations.”

This technical memorandum, which is being prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Peace
Agreement and the Watermaster Rules and Regulations cited above, contains Watermaster’s second
evaluation of the “cumulative” Impacts of transfers.

5.2 Analysis

The Peace Agreement defines Transfers as “the assignment, lease, or sale of a right to Produce water to
another Producer within the Chino Basin or to another person or entity for use outside the Basin in
conformance with the Judgment, whether the Transfer is of a temporary or permanent nature” (Peace
Agreement 11-12). Replenishment water means “Supplemental Water used to Recharge the Basin
pursuant to the physical solution, either directly by percolating or injecting the water into the Basin or
indirectly by delivering the water for use in lieu of Production and use of Safe Yield or Operating Safe
Yield” (Peace Agreement page [0). Based on the Peace Agreement definition (and in actuality), not all
transfers that occur replace the physical recharge of water to the Chino Basin. This technical
memorandum focuses on an evaluation of the cumulative physical impact of transfers that replaced the
physical recharge of water.

5-2 B

July 2005




OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM DRAFT REPORT
SECTION 5
EVALUATION OF THE CUMULATIVE EFFECTS OF TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO THE PEACE AGREEMENT

5.2 1 Historic Assessment of Transfers and Replenishment

in order to determine the cumulative impacts of transfers, if any, the avoided physical recharge due to
transfers must be determined. However, since not all transfers represented avoided physical recharge and
since Watermaster does not specifically determine avoided physical recharge each year, the calculation of
the actual avoided physical recharge during the study period had to be estimated from the historical
operations of Watermaster. First, data regarding historic transfer and replenishment activities were
assembled and disapgregated into “physically recharged” components and “in-lieu” or “exchanged”
components. This was accomplished by reviewing and tabulating transfer, recharge, and replenishment
information from the Watermaster Assessment Packages and Annual Reports for Watermaster fiscal years
2002-03 through 2003-04 (see Appendices B & C) and updating the prior tabulation to include these two
years. This was done for the major producers historically participating in transfers {the Cucamonga
Valley Water District, City of Chino, City of Chino Hills, Fontana Union Water Company, Fontana Water
Company, Jurupa Community Services District, Marygoid Mutual Water Company, Cities of Ontario and
Pomona, San Antonio Water Company, Santa Ana River Water Company, Southern California Water
Company, and the City of Upland). In addition, Metropolitan account activities and the ground water
replenishment activities previously tabulated were updated.

To caleulate the avoided replenishment or physical recharge of water that occurred, the following steps
were taken:

« Update spreadsheets for the study period that duplicate the Watermaster Assessment
Packages for each Producer listed above and check them against the Assessment Packages
{Appendix C).

. Refine spreadsheets to break out water transfer activity, including known transfers from
storage, Metropolitan exchanges, etc.

. Update transfer summaries from transfers shown in the Assessment Package based on where
the transfers originated and went for the same period (Appendix C).

. Calculate each producer’s total replenishment obligation without transfers, both including and
excluding any Metropolitan exchanges from production.

. Update spreadsheets summarizing the total replenishment obligation calculated for each
producer by year for both including and excluding any Metropolitan exchanges for the study
period. These tables represent what the total obligation would have been, by producer, had
the producers not completed the transfers (Table 5-1A and 5-2A).

. Update spreadsheets summarizing net over-production from the Assessment Package for each
producer (Table 5-1B and 5-2B).

. Update summary spreadsheets subtracting the net over-production from the Assessment
Package from the total replenishment obligation by producer, both for including and
excluding Metropolitan exchanges. These tables represent the avoided physical recharge or
replenishment by producer (Table 5-1C and 5-2C).

. Update spreadsheets summarizing actual groundwater replenishment, including the total
unmet replenishment obligation from the Assessment Packages, and indicating how
Watermaster satisfied the obligation each year (i.e. sources of water) (Table 5-3).

. Update the spreadsheet summarizing Metropolitan cyclic account activity during the study
period. Calculate the percentage of cyclic water used for replenishment that was delivered by
exchange or physically recharged (Table 5-4).

53 TR
July 2005

o

oIt



OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM DRAFT REPORT
SECTION S
EVALUATION OF THE CUMULATIVE EFFECTS OF TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO THE PEACE AGREEMENT

«  Evaluate the resuits both including and excluding Metropolitan exchange.

The tables in Appendix C show the historic water transfer activity and net replenishment obligation for
each producer. These tables duplicate the results of the Watermaster Assessment Packape. Because
exchanges with Metropolitan are included in the assessment packages as part of production, the effect of
exchanges that did not avoid the physical recharge of water had to be accounted for in the calculation (See
Table 5-5, Calculation of Avoided Physical Recharge).

Based on the evaluation of the information above, approximately 262,000 acre-feet of avoided physical
recharge occurred between July 1, 1989 and June 30, 2004. For the period 2003-04, this is an increase of
approximately 37,000 acre-feet. The increase is due primarily to the outstanding replenishment
obligation at the end of fiscal year 2004 as opposed to avoided physical recharge due to transfers.

5.2.2 Analysis of Material Physical Injury

Based on the analysis herein it is concluded that there has been no material physical injury to the basin or
a Party to the Judgment due fo transfers.

Had the transfers not occurred, Watenmaster would have recharged as much as 262,000 acre-ft of
supplemental water into the basin and the volume of water in storage would increase due to this recharpe.
With this recharge the following impacts would have occurred:

«  Groundwater levels and storage would have increased

. Qutflow to the Santa Ana River would have increased

«  Safe yield of the Basin would have declined

« Nitrate concentrations would be lower in the immediate area of physical recharge

The cumulative impact of the transfers are the opposite of the above. For the most part, the cumulative
impact of the transfers is positive. The 2003 Watermaster Model was not used to estimate the impact of
the cumulative effect of transfers because it is not possible to predict how the Watermaster Parties water
supply plans would have changed in the absence of transfers.

Table 5-6 shows the distribution of transfers that occurred between MZ1, MZ2, and MZ3. Some
Watermaster Parties have expressed concerns that some transfers that result in reduced physical recharge
could contribute to the subsidence problem in Management Zone 1. Review of Table 5-6 shows that
historically there has been about 8,000 acre-ft of water transferred to producers in MZ1 from producers in
MZ2 and MZ3. The table shows that about 137,000 acre-fi was transferred within MZ2 and about 20,000
acre-ft was transferred within MZ3. It also shows that about 20,000 acre-ft was transferred out of MZ2 to
MZ3 and about 15,000 acre-ft was transferred from MZ3 to MZ2, for a net of about 5,000 acre-fi to MZ2.
In contrast, about 143,000 acre-fi of production was transferred out of MZ! or a net of about 135,000
acre-ft out of MZ1, which is beneficial to the management of subsidence in MZ1.

5-4

July 2008




Table 51

A Tetd Without & AW Exchange in Production
GAS-55
53001 oo 61352 2] K] og a9 os [BIALY
559107 an 30,8611 c.o 2] [+:] a0 0.c 7658390
159292 Q.0 34585 3] [-3d] a0 oy 0z 15,856.9
159384 a0 22545 290 ¢0 2.0 [: 1] .0 16,658.5)
165105 o0 9589 a0 Q.0 a8 o 2.0 120740
195555 o8 137454 o0 00 kel 6.0 ad 258161
159597 ac 15.5914.3 o0 0.8 as oo o0 356452
150755 oG 14,6587 0o an [1he3 o0 a0 FJIOTA
195859 1226 155156 oo [:R4] oc .0 o0 34,7742
195500 a0 0.0 1028352 a0 o.e 1] 2.0 o8 37 2055
2O00-01 ac 0.e e 17,0580 prri] a34n 3008 [:3:] Qo o0 [1Xe] 28.536.8] 53,0737
200402 Lk 2.8 L:13 105857 54974 133545 4810 134 o0 a0 0.0 35,581.0] TOAZLO
200203 [+E+] a0 k<3 18,6183 54642 14,8641 4485 [+ L] 0 L] oo 3G, 3L TR.7BES
pigaksi] ag 0.0 3] pe SR 8,831 155714 o.e 0.0 fet:] .o a0 51,1082
10,0842
TOTALS 113734 0.0 12.824.5 150.530.4 20.264.7 156. 1927 12206 0.0 [ [X] 0.0 432.214.8
o.04
57425
I AELE]
197257
255308
2060302 2.0 0e 147040 R 338175
200203 0.0 o0 12,5045 00 2a 7080 £.000.0 726530
200304 1K1} a4 BADELD 40502 20 16560 8.B78.5
8007 F
TOTALS 11.270.8 5.870.0 115.269.5 50.325.1 0.8 131829 98.764.9

T WILDERMUTH

Jrian ittt

A A



Table %2

A, Total Repitnishment Dbfigation Witheut Transfers & MWD from §

[ 1} 15,1386

136500 24

1550-91 14055 ac 17957
369132 25028 o.e 24.545.]]
1p92-83 267605 (1243 54.431,4]
155304 8372 G 155585
155555 GEIG fri] 11,0742
1855-55 6.530.2 20 24,4034
1995-37 BILE ] 35,6452
1587.98 $0.ETALT ao 30,7074
105380 103736 0.0 342782
162540 209458 oo 37,2055
2C00-0% 17.086.0 134} W53
2003-02 19,5857 o0 13,5510
200203 K K 1846723 0.4 293043
200)-04 & Q0 245920 16803 0.0 29,714,
TOTALS g0 108951 0.0 125345 1605304 TB4TTY @O 159837 1350641 1.330.5 0.0 a0 0.0 7] 415357,
82 Net O ion feem Patkage by F

108950 [1X]
1950.54 o0 !
158582 oo L1 2n as X3 0.0 21,859.9
1952-63 o.e 0.z @0 oG 8o o0 72188
155564 o o0 (-4} oe o Q0 a0
159495 113 a0 1) o7 o0 4] 27076
1555-96 ag o0 .0 G0 a0 o 11,7454
1F0E-97 oo 20 o0 a0 a9 oe 12,6647
155708 %] 2.0 o0 o4 oo 23 21
1998.98 a0 o0 o.u o0 oL i) 0.0}
155500 o0 4] 2.8 &o [+ Go o0
78C0-01 2.0 184} az oo LK) 20 0.0}
200102 20 154 oG o [s2<] o0 57431
200267 ab 0.0 [c%] ao 4.0 a9 16,741.3,
200304 1) 16,5855 Z7EES o0 c.o 0.0 a8 249 M, 7254
TOTALS [1] 45.050.6 J3.0528 0.0 T.020.8 STI8T.7 0.0 3] a.0 o.0 0.0 22132

T Avolded Physical

15ER-50 0 5
16550.51 6g 14059 LE000 oo op 3551 .

22383 33800 0.0 &0 =248 o0 o0 an ag oo

159592 oo

1589293 X0} o ghes o0 80 ZMEY 2.0 2.0 o0 ae GG
1803-94 a9 8372 8125E 0.0 20 22548 oo as a0 0.8 GE
155485 G0 3TR0 455 a0 2.0 21 L5 as au 0e o0
158558 a0 65301 53844 a0 o 4873 o0 e on [13+] o9
105507 20 Too.0  TIDE e oo 0767 0.0 [:2-] 151} o0 o0
365708 o 10737 0TS0 1] 0.0 146507 o0 ean) o0 a0 oo
1595.0% oe W03ile  &18%E 6g 1226 150158 oe k] ad b oo
14500 ok 285455 G458 C.& 0.0 103302 as fl] o0 2.0 111}
0001 [:1X+3 70950 ae G0 70 B5438 360.8 a0 og oo oo
200162 oo 147040 [} of  B4F4 139331 4833 a0 e [:X:} 00
200253 o0 12,5055 G0 &0 37§00 60000 4484 an [N an 00
200304 0.0 80055 -1.090.2 20 Sras 17162 oo ao 0.g o0 00
TOTALS 00 5459948 GG .i6.021.5 1154600 SD.395.% 00 8%58n 7rE¥Rl 17306 0.0 [X] 0.0 [T 243.038.%

LIS £




69

Table §-3
Groundwater Replenishment

5679.7{ 14,0388

198%-90 30,344.5 0.c 0.0 0.0 0.0 o0 0.0} 30,3445 0.0 19,324.2 16,700.0f 163771 0.c 6.0 0.0

18586G.91 31,814.8 0.¢ $,887.6 475.1 828.0 4.0 3,290,7] 28,524.2 0.0 a.0 4522427 14,9291 0. 0.0 0.0

1881.92 23,870.4 0.; 2,583.0 501.4 705,1 0.0 3,7B9.5) 20,080.9| 53871 17,726.0 42,192,0| -45.405.0 o0 o0 0.0

1952-93 7.501.5 318186 5,443.9 0.0 28093 0.0 12,534.8] -5033.3] 87847 21,8835 6,480.5 0.0 060 48081 0.0

1893.94 432.0 2,688.0 48858 0.6 $,264.9 0.0 8.850.8] -B4288 88848 0.0 -10,930.9 0.0 [eX] -51.1 0.0

1994-85 3,080.9 4.0 0.0 0.e 0.0 0.0 0.6 30808 432.1 0.0 -8,302.0 0.0 31708 «1.5 0.0

198596 12,903.7 824 o0 0.c 0.0 0.0 824 2,8213f 47010 0.0 «181.8 05 26119 -0.4 0.0

1896-97 20,578.2 0.0 ¢.0 0.0 Q.0 0.0 0.0] 20,578.2] 4.672.7 0.0 15,723.8 0.0 ~46727 0.6 0.0

1997-g8 7709 4.0 8,322,6 0.0 0.0 0.0 83226 -7,551.7 a0 0.¢ 8.172.1 a0 20 -0.4 0.0

1598-99 857.5 15133 29606 [eX1] 1,223.4 0.0 5,697.3] 50398 0.0 14738 1.658.4 0.0 0.0 -1.3 0.t

1988-00 579.3 1.000.8 G.0 0.0 0.G 1,008.8 4215 0.0 §67.5 578.4 Q.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2000-01 168.7 0.0 287 o0 0.0 04 287 168.0 2.0 7483 Q.3 40 -1,110.0 -D.2 65000

2001-02 5,872.9 0.0 0.4 0.0 a.0 0.0 g1 58728 0.0 0.0 58728 0.0 0.0 «1.1 6,500.G

2002-03 17.029.% 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 a0 0.0 17,0291 3,000.0 3.853.2 16,018.7] 4,738.3 0.0 -4739.5 6.499.9

2003-04 32,3884 1,211.0 oe 0.0 2.813.0 0.0 4,024,0f 28,364.4f 408983 c.0 40,284.8; 14,4635 0.0 0.0 35580

TOTALS 188,002.8 8,676.3 28,2142 976.5 9,763.7 0.0 47,630.7 40,070.4 55,696.5; 19.201.8 0.0 0.0 23,0579
TRETI Eval o Curn Efect of Trarafary Fral Cxafsh m T 5-3 GW Resd ;:; WILDEAMUTH
#2005 — 1022 A e fRvLTERuEEAL Tn



Table 54

Cycllc Activites’

47.808.3
198330 475083 o0 00 0 0.0 2.8 o0 78,484,3 0 0.0 0.0 A 100.0%% -19,324.2 -19.324.2 a4.0 AR 28,482.% 212
355031 284841 [eX+] 0.0 1292 WIS 2.0 5027 28,5668 +14] ca 00 5027 106.0% 0,0% 0.0 a0 259658 28,9656 21.2;
1599182 28,985.8 o0 12703 o0 4808 0.0 1.761.1 13,0215 72057 7.205.7 7.205.7 85668 B4.4% 356% -57,726.0] -17,726,0 o 02278 26,206.4 21.2
15%2-83 202216 0.0 §45,3 2y iNg 0.0 1677.1 6111 a8 a.¢ -589.9 16771 2RB4E% -2784.6%: ~24,883.5 ~14,087.% «3,7956 21,2 o.u 21.3]
1953-94 21,2] 5166 5,466.8 a.0 1,650.8 0.0 76342 82453 11,210.2 11,2102 10,6203 15,5444 43.7% 56.3% 24 0.e 0.0 18,6656 188445 211
1594-95 18.885.5 6,942.7 718 2.0 26412 0.0 10,300.0 18,5453 10511 1.051.1 116754 11,3511 61.4% 38.8% oo .G 0.0 302167 309938 22.9
183556 302187 0.0 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 18,5453 3.555.3 35853 $5,226.7 35553 54.8% 45,1% 0.0 o0 0a 33,7720 337491 22.5]
1888-97 33,7720 0o 165 0.0 [ Xe] 0.5 16,5 18,5615 0.0 0.0 $5.226.7 16,5 54.9% 45.1% 0.0 .0 .o 337885 33,7656 228
1597-98 33,7885 00 o.e 0.0 125 ] 0.6 2.0 18,5618 44585 44819 147486 4,491.9 ABS5% 51.5% 00 6.6 38,280,4: 38,2575 2.9
1998.55 368.280.4, 14 2.0 0.¢ a0 o¢ 0.0 17.847.3 0.0 0o 18,8554 4.0 48.5% 31.5% ~1473.9 -714.7 -7156.2 35,806.5: 35,7951 §0,4
1998-G¢ 36,B05,5! o0 o0 0.6 44 0.0 0.0! 17,5283 [+24] a4 18,620.7 4.0 48.5% 51.5% -557.5 -318.8 -338.7 36,148.¢ 36,4284 228
2000-61 36,1458,0 o0 0.0 0.5 0.0 oo 0.0 17,1654 o6 a9 18,2352 0.0 45.5% 51,5% ~T48.3 ~36248 -385% 35.400.7 355458 «148,1
2001-02 35,400.7, a0 o1 G 0.0 00 $65.0: 17,334.4 oo 2.8 18,.235.2] 69.0 4875 51.3% a0 0.g 0.0 I5.584.T 35,5436 ~142.8
2002.09" 35.560.7 2.0 0g o.e 0.0 0.0 .0 15.442.0 o.e 2.0 16,2444 0.6 48,7% 51.3% ~3.883,2 -1,882.4 «1,880.5 31,666,5
2003.04 31,6865 0.0 0.0 oo 0c 0.0 G.G 15,442.0 op 0.0 16,2444 0.6 48,7% 51.3% 0.0 2.0 0.0 31,6865
TOTALS 7.458.2 8,415.1 128.2 5.888,1 0.4} 22.060.5 27.514.2 27,5142 485748 LG5656.6; -54.426.8 ~11,253.8

* From Walermaster Annual Repors and Assessment Packages

2THTTN Eval o s Efarrof frweater, Fread Dratcts r T2 54 40003 Cyads

HETRER 1S A

sy WILODEAMUTH
iR air A Cirg i



Table 5-5

Calculation of Avoided Physical Recharge

i my (M ang
Total Replenishment Obligation 452,214.9 415252.3
Less Net Obligation from Pkg. 172,213.2 172,213.2
Gross Avoided Physical Recharge 280,001.8 243,039.1
Plus Effect of Exchange/in Lieu” -18,815.4 18,815.4
Net Avoided Physical Recharge 261,186.3 261,854.5 261,520.4
* See Below
Groundwater In Lieu for Replenishment 40,070.4
Plus Cyclic In Lieu for Replenishment 11,268.8
Totat Exchange/in Lieu for Replenishment 51,340.2
Net Groundwater Replenishment
Required from Assessment Package 172,213.2
Less Direct Spread for Repl 47,630.7
Less Cyclic Spread for Repl 54,426.8
Groundwater Replenishment by Exchange/In Lieu -70,155.6
Net Additional Avoided Physical
Recharge due to Exchange/in Lleu -18,815.4
20050731 Eval of Cum Effect of Transiers Final Drafl.xls - Thi 5.5 Cale of Nat Avoid Rechg v WILDERMUTH"

222006 — 10:22 AM g RMVIRONMERYAL (e



12

Table 5-6

Water Transfers’ by Zone (acre-ft)

Zone 1 35,462 1,883 8,155 43,500
Zone 2 119,182 162,416 17,808 289405
Zone 3 23,616 20,866 23,100 67,582

Total 178,260 175,164 47,063 400,487

*Not exhaustive - transfers involving only storage may nat be included; does not include MWD refated

transfers

20050731 Water Transfer Summary By Year by Zone Final Drall.xls- table 5-6 Total Znno

242006 10:21 AM

S WILDERMUTH"

FHVIROHMMENTAL IHE

oEE




IV. REPORTS/UPDATES

D. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

4.

N e

Monthly Water Conservation Programs
Report

. Groundwater Operations Recharge

Summary
Monthly Imported Water Deliveries Report

. State and Federal Legislative Reports
. Community Outreach/Public Relations

Report




CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER

ADVISORY COMMITTEE
February 23, 2006
AGENDA
INTER-AGENCY WATER MANAGERS' REP ORT

Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Rd.

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

20 - 30 Minutes

Discussion ltems:

o MWD Status Report - Richard Atwater
e Recycled Water Implementation Schedule ~ Richard Atwater
o Water-Energy NEXUS “ Caleep” Study - Martha Davis

Written Updates:

Monthly Water Conservation Programs Report
Groundwater Operations Recharge Summary
Monthly Imported Water Deliveries Report
State and Federal Legislative Reports
Community Outreach/Public Relations Report

e & © @ ©o

-~

<o



T4

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION




Regional Conservation Programs
Monthly Report-February

MWD Activities
o Azusa Pipeline Agreement. On February 14, 2006, the MWD Board approved the agreement with Three

o

o

Valleys Municipal Water District and IEUA to allow emergency interconnections with the Azusa Pipeline to the
Cucamonga Valley Water District Lloyd Michaels and WFA filtration plants. This will enhance significantly supply
reliability throughout the IBUA service area.

California Friendly Marketing Campaign- The “California Friendly” campaign is an effort by MWD and
its member agencies to get people to conserve resources by using water and energy efficient products along with
changing to water efficient landscapes. Marketing materials are being developed to carry out the new California
Friendly campaign and will kick off on April 15, 2006 with TV advertisements, public service announcements,
newspaper advertisements, and other materials.

Regional Water Supplies- Based on snow pack levels in the Sierras and the upper Colorado River watershed,
MWD has indicated that “surplus” supplies of imported water will be available this year.

Landscape Programs

o “SmarTimer of Inland Empire” Irrigation Controller Program- The final application form, product

o

o

description, advertisement and other materials for the irrigation controllers have been created and were distributed at
the January Regional Conservation Partnership Workgroup meeting. All materials will be available on the IEUA web
site in February, 2006.

Phase II Landscape Audit Program (05/06) - The RFP for the 05/06 Audit Program will be released in

March, 2006, and the program will commence in spring.

Ontario Cares- City of Ontario will implement a pilot project to integrate “California Friendly” into the city's
program to improve existing neighborhoods. MWD consultant presented “California Friendly” templates to Ontario
Cares inspection staff and landscape contractors. MWD will test templates and marketing materials on 4-5 houses and
report back with results. The group will finalize materials at the next meeting, Implementation of the “California
Friendly” landscape will begin early spring, 2006.

Residential Landscape Classes- The Regional PDA class scheduled for February 11, 2006 was cancelled due
to low interest. Local PDA classes include the Upland PDA series every Saturday from March 4".March 25™,
MVWD on March 11%, and CVWD on April 8™,

Landscape Collaborative- IEUA staff met with city officials to consider the formation ofa landscape task force
to coordinate water efficient landscaping throughout the regions programs and policy recommendations.

Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Program
o (CII SAVE-A-BUCK)- At the December meeting the Regional Conservation Workgroup agreed to add $27,000

to the rebate incentives. The group plans to have Honeywell target our retail area in early 2006 with the increased
rebates and test how long it takes to expend $27,000. Honeywell will analyze which devices benefited from the
rebate increase, and from those results the group will adjust the program to make it more effective in the future.
o High Efficiency Clothes Washers — There were 15 clothes washer rebates for the month of November. To
date 305 commercial high efficiency clothes washers have been installed in our service area since FY 00/01.
o Conductivity Controller Cooling Tower — 1 controller was installed in FY 05/06 bringing the total to 15
conductivity controllers installed through the Save-a-Buck program since FY 00/01.
o ULF Toilets — 234 ULFTs were rebated in January bringing the total to 445 ULFs in our service area since
FY 00/01.
o  Water Broom — 114 water brooms were rebated in October bringing the total to 693 since FY 00/01.

o Restaurant Spray Heads- This program is being implemented by the CUWCC. Phase Il was completed in

December, 2005 with approximately 861 spray nozzles installed in our service area. To date approximately 1,192
spray heads have been installed. Phase III will begin in March and end in December, 2006.

Residential Programs
o Single-Family ULF Toilet Exchange Programs- The Regional Conservation Workgroup decided at their

January meeting to discontinue the exchange events with the exception of one local Upland event. The group will re-

[



evaluate the program for FY 07/08. During this time IEUA staff will collect information on HETs and direct install
programs to guide the group in exploring alternate single family toilet programs.

o Multi-Family ULF Toilet Program- Currently, through the direct install program approximately 4,724 toilets
have been installed and 1,161 have been confirmed for installation. The remaining toilets are expected to be installed
early 2006, The next round of the program will be funded by a DWR $1.6 million grant for 22,000 toilets to begin in
late spring, 2006.

o High Efficiency Clothes Washer Rebate- Approximately 151 rebates were issued during January, bringing
the total for the current fiscal year to 775 rebates. This brings the total number of rebates to approximately 5,834
since the rebate program began in 2002.

School Education Programs
o Garden in Every School- The first meetings with the schools took place on January 13" and 20", Imrigation is
currently being put in at the schools. Planting will begin in March.
National Theatre for Children- NTC is in the process of completing the spring schedule.

Groundwater Model- Chino Hills’ and IEUA staffs are now in the process of learning how to operate the
Model. Once this is done meetings to see the model demonstrated will be set up with interested agencies.

o Solar Cup (2006) - MWD announced the schedule for the Solar Cup 2006 event. The event will occur May 19"
through May 21%, 2006. IEUA (as the member agency) will be represented by three schools: Chino Hills High
School and Ayala High School in Chino Hills, and Upland High School.

Outreach

o Conservation Ads (monthly and special) - Conservation tips are printed in the Daily Bulletin monthly (on

Sundays at the end of each month).

o Water Education Water Awareness Committee (WEWAC) — WEWAC participated in the Home and
Garden Fair at the Pomona Fairplex on Friday, January 27" -Sunday, January 29™ by having a garden exhibit full of
drought tolerant plants and water conserving landscaping resources.

o BMP Support Grants- No new action.

Water Conservation Budget/Actual (As of 12/31/05)

Revenues (est.) Annual Budget Est. Actual to date (FY05/06)
Imported $4/AF Surcharge $380,000 $206,568
Retail Meter Revenue $54,863 $27,480
Property Tax 575,000 $37,500
Regional Sewage Fund Transfer $50,000 $25,000
Interest 525.800 $12.900
Subtotal $583,663 $309,448
Othier Agency Funding

MWD (est. CCP Credits &Rebates) $668.000 $46.000
Subtotal $668,000 $46,000
Total Budget $1,251,663 $355,448
Expenditures Budget Actual
HECWs $110,000 $70,071
ULFTs $830,700 $603,534
Landscape Programs %148,000 $11,054
CUWCC Dues $11,000 50
Education Programs $95,000 $27,494
Agency Support $2,500 $0

CII Marketing $27,000 $0

BMP Partuership Funding $2,000 30
Public Information $56.000 $9.600

Totals $1,282,200 §721,153




Upcoming Events

CALENDAR

February 22, 2006

Lendership Breakfast (IEUA)

March 4, 2006

Landscape Design Basics PDA Class (4)(City of Upland)

March 8, 2006

CUWCC Plenary Session (San Francisco)

March 11, 2006

PDA “Water Wise” Gardening MiniClass (Monte Vista Water District)

March 11, 2006

California Friendly & Native Plants PDA Class (4)(City of Upland)

March 18, 2006

Landscape Sprinkler Systems PDA Class (4)(City of Upland)

March 22, 2006

Kids Water Awareness Day (Cucamonga Valley Water District)

March 25, 2006

Soils, Watering, & Fertilizers PDA Class (4) (City of Upland)

April 1, 2006

Local ULF Toilet Distribution (City of Upland)

April 22, 2006

Local ULF Toilet Return {City of Upland)

April 28™-30 , 2006

Lemon Festival (City of Upland)

May 13, 2006

Water Awareness Day (Cucamonga Valley Water District)

May 19"-21%, 2006

Solar Cup

17




THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



SUMMARY OF GROUNDWATER RECHARGE OPERATIONS

Drainage System

Recharge Volume (AF)

Basin

Jul 2005 i Aug 2005 i Sep 2005 E Oct 2005 E Nov 2005 i Dec 2005 | Jan 2006 | Total
San Antonio Channel Drainape System =07 . i __ :

Collepe Heights East

228

141

éds' T 182 757

Non-replenishment* (MVWD)

College Heights West 92 122 383 437 313 256 397 2,000

Upiand - - 454 607 630 391 555 2,637

Montclair 1, 2,3 & 4 848 - - 78 489 £56 624 2,895

Brooks 33 175 684 127 390 365 257 2,032
(35 - - -

West Cucamonga Channel Drainage System: - 000

(@

_(20)

8™ Sireet

60

7]

%0

0 66 310

7th Street - - - 60 - - 50 110
Ely - - - 336 146 249 203 935
Non-replenishment* (GE) - - - {106) (i31) ( 107)

Cicamonga and Deci Creek Channol Draimage Systems =~ . oo oo 0

Tumner 1 & 2

1)

: =

179

59 262 o84

Turner 3 & 4

_ 124 75 199

Day Cregk Channel Drainage System  ~ = = =

Lower Day

139 _

HI

545

t _3]0.........

265 | 357 ] 2434

Eiwanda Channg] Driinage System

Etiwanda Spreading Grounds

1.02_ G

. 5.2'.?

102

108

308 214 1 1109

Victoria

49

Sin Sevaine Channel Drainage System | i0s s Do e i

San Sevaine

469

558

575

T 968 | 4911

Banana

212

254

129

54

29 56

Hickory

2_65

487

113

Declez. Channel Dramage System .~ -

269

9 | o

RP3

31

31

&0

= i

Declez

11

1

30

114

30 35 261

Subtotals

2,189

1,930

3,363

3,340

4,013

4,363 4,452 23,651

Recharge Water by Type

Storm Water (SW) w/ Local Runoff (LR)

Y]

137

395 T

'375”

344

665 ] 751

MWD Water (MW)

1,522

1,540

2,796

2313

3,570

3,621 3,548 18,910

Recycled Water (RW)

20

254

268

150

100

77 154 1,022

Subiotals

2,189

1,930

3,363

3,340

4,013

4,363 4,452 23,651

INofes:

SW : Storm Watcr LR Loml Runuﬂ‘ MW MWD Watcr, RW Rccyclud Wa!er

. :No stormwater/locat runoff, or basin not in use due to maintenance or testing.

X ‘Tumouls not available - to be instatied within future projects.

N : Not Applicable or No mout planned for installation.
*Non-Replenishment (deduct) is groundwater pumped from Chino Basin and recharged back into the basin.
Data nre preliminary based en the data available at the time of this report preparation

Printed:  Feb. 08,00




- &80

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



8

Acre-feet

70,000

60,000

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

GCumulative Monthly Full Service Imported Water Deliveries

IEUA

Calendar Year 2005 and Calendar Year 2006

May Jun Jul Aug Sep

1CY 2005 EEEI Y 2006 — Tier 1 Maximum |




THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION




Inland Empire

UTILITIES AGENCY

Date: February 15, 2006

To: . Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs & Water Resources Committee (2/8/06)
From: Richard W. Atwater(

Chief Executive Officer/General Manager
Submitted by: Martha Davis {\W0

Executive Manager of Policy Development
Subject: January Legislative Report from Geyer and Associates
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.
BACKGROUND

Bill Geyer and Jennifer West provide 2 monthly report on their state activities on behalf
of IEUA. ‘

PRIOR BOARD ACTION
None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

RWA:MD:jbs
Gi\board-rec\2006106039 January Leg Report from Geyer




- 84

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION




Bltl, GEYER
JENNIFER WEST

¥ = P N—

GEYER
ASSOCIATES

GCONSULTING AND ADVOCACY IN CALIFGRNIA GOVERNMENT 1028 K ST.. BUITE 33, SACRAMENTO, CA 85814, (916} 444+

MEMORANDUM
T Rich Atwater and Martha Davis
FROM: Jennifer West
DATE. January 27, 2006
RE: January Legislative Report

0345 FAX: (B16) 444-T484, EMAIL: peysrwGpachel.nat

~ Governor Introduces Comprehensive Water Infra
As part of Gov., Amold Schwarzenegger’s overall Str
Administration has introduced two identical bills, AB 1839 an
major water-related provisions. The proposal wou
Clean, Safe, Reliable Water Supply Bond and Financing Acts
is an overview of the major provisions in th '
does not reference potential federal matching

structure Proposal

ategic Growth Plan, the )

d SB 1166, which contain
1d enact the “Flood Protection and

” of 2006 and 2010. Below
e Governor's water package. This overview
funds or the local matching funding.

Program, Project or Bond Provisions 2006 2010 Water Resources
Bond Bond Investment Fund
Levee System and Flood Protection %1 billion $1.5 billion
(detailed below)
Project Levee and Facilities Repair $210 million $300 millicn
Flood Control and Levee System $200 million $200 million
Improvements
Delta Levees Subventions and Special $210 million $700 million
Projects
Flood Control Subventions $210 million $700 million
Fiood Mapping $90 million 30
Floodway Corridor Program $40 million 5100
Million
Inteprated Regional Water Management $2 billion $4.5 billion $5 billion
{detailed below) { over ten years})
| Repional Water Management Grants $1 billion $2 billion
Water Quality Improvement $250 miilion %500 million
New Surface Storage $250 million $1 billion
Science and Techriology/ Desalination $300 million $500 million
Resource Stewardship/Environment $200 million $500 million
Total $3 billion $6 biliton $5 billion




This proposal demonstrates that the Governor and his Administration is committed to
investing in California water projects and reflects 2 major commitment to regional water
planning and local projects.

Bond Measures on Fast Track ,

The Democratic leadership has agreed that all the infrastructure bond measures should be
put on a legislative fast track. The Governor and Senator Perata, who has his own
infrastructure bond, have told the Legislature they would ideally like to place a measure
on the June 2006 ballot. This means the Legislature would have to pass a bond measure
no later than March 14. To accomplish this, all the existing legisiative timelines have

‘been waived. This week policy committees began to review the Governor's proposal and

are making recommendations for amendments to a bond, which will be considered by the
infrastructure bond conference committee that was appointed this month, Ultimately, it
will be up to the infrastructure bond conference committee to decide what will be
included in the bond measure. Conferees are Senators Chesbro, Hollingsworth and
Murray and Assemblymembers Laird, Chu and Keene.

Water Surcharge Proposed to Fund the Water Resources Investment Fund

One of the major provisions contained in the Governor's water bond is a proposed
capacity charge to fund the “Water Resources Investment Fund” or WRIF. This fee or
tax would be levied on retail water agencies. This is expected to generate $380 million a
year, or $5 billion over ten years. Under the proposal, once a year the retail water
agencies would send the funds to the Board of Equalization, who would then deposit it
into the WRIE. The retail agencies are expected to raise their rates to cover these costs.
Retail agencies would assess the charge based on the actual number and types of water
connections in its service areas in accordance with the following schedule:

$0 per month for each lifeline connection (very low income).

$3 per month for each single-famnily residence water connection.

$5 per month for each commercial water connection.

$10 per month for each multiple-family residence water connection,

$10 per month for each industrial site water connection.

o $3 per month for each agricultural water connection that services an area not
exceeding nine acres.

o  $6 per month for each agricultural water connection that services an area that
exceeds nine areas but does not exceed 180 acres.

o  $10 per month for each agricultural water connection that services an area

exceeding 180 acres.

e & o ©

Q

The Governor’s proposal calls for 50 percent of the WRIF funds to go directly back to a
regional entity, like SAWPA, for grants for regional projects. Within the region, local
entities would compete for the funding and the regional entity would award grants.

The state’s share of the WRIF would be divided up in two ways. One-half of the state’s
share would be available to the regions for competitive grants, administered by DWR.
The other half of the state’s share would go towards water projects of “statewide .
importance”.




Concerns Regarding the WRIF

The WRIF is a new source of water funding intended to provide an ongoing source of
funding for local and statewide water projects. According to the Administration this
proposal will 1) optimize the Regional Planning approach, 2) maximize efficiency, and 3)
move water and flood financing off of the General Fund and the General Obligation Bond
cycle.

However, as structured, the WRIF appears {0 disproportionately impact urban agencies.
According to the proposal, some water agencies have calculated that the state retail
surcharge on urban residential customers would equal approximately $72 per acre-foot of
water annually, while the state retail water surcharge on agricultural customers would
calculate to a charge of approximately $0.24 per acre foot of water annually.

Other problems that have been identified with the WRIF include:
o Inadequate protection from unlimited increases by the California Water
Commission (section 82156). '
o While the bill establishes a ten year financing plan there is no specific sunset
provision for the WRIF.
o It is unclear whether are sufficient protections in the bill to keep the
.Legislature from redirecting these funds for other purposes.
o No direct nexus between the fee/tax and the benefit received.
o Capacity charge may compete with local water supplier efforts to raise rates
for local projects that they have in the pipeline.

Until these issues have been resolved the Board may want to consider a position of
“Oppose unless Amended” on the WRIFE portion of the Governor’s Bond.




inland Empire Utilities Agency

Positions List

January 27, 2006
Summary Status Poslition
AB 371 Sponsored by WaterReuse. Makes a Senate Floor | Support
(Goldberg) number of changes recommended by -
Recycled Water | the Water Recycling Task Force. Some
water agencies had concerns with the
bill and it was stripped of numerous
controversial provisions. WaterReuse
continues to try to work out the
: remaining problems with the bill.
AB 1259 The bill has been changed to a different Missed Oppose/
{(Daucher) subject matter. Deadline recommend
Special District neutral as
Property Tax amended
Shift
AB 1421 (Laird) | Sponsor said that they donotintend to | Senate E.Q. | Oppose
Contamination | pursue the bill in 2006. unless
amended
Would have given a RWQCB the
authority to issue a cease and desist
order for any degradation of water
quality — even if it involved recycled
water.
SB 153 2006 Park and Water bond measure. Conference | Support
(Chesbro) Contains $200 million for the Integrated Committee
Resources Bond | Regional Water Management Program | on the
and other coastal and water quality bonds
funding. This will be one of the bond
measures under consideration for
inclusion in the Governor’s resources
bond or in Senator Perata’s
infrastructure bond.
SB 187 (Soto) | Requires OEHHA to consider adopting | Missed Oppose
OEHHA the PHG for perchliorate when any other Deadline '
state in the US adopts a lower PHG than
"California.
SB 393 (Ortiz) | Require ethics training for special Missed Oppose
Special District | district officials, specify audit standards, Deadline
Reforms and place limits on board members'
compensation.
Watch
| New

AB 1881 (Laird) | Spot bill on water conservation in




landscaping. This will be the vehicle to
implement the recommendations of the
water conservation landscape advisory
taskforce.

introduction

oo




THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



b inland Empire

UTILITIES AGENCY

Date: February 15, 2006
To: Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs & Water Resources Comnmittee (2/8/06)
From: Richard W. Atwatew

Chief Executive.Officer/General Manager
Submitted by: Martha Davis W | _

Executive Manager of Policy Development
Subject: January Legislative Report from Dolphin Group
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.
BACKGROUND

Michael Boccodoro provides a monthly report on his activities on behalf of the Chino
Basin/Optimum Basin Management Program Coalition. '

PRIOR BOARD ACTION
None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

RWAMD:jbs ‘
G\board-rec\2006\5040 January Lep Report from Dolphin Group

91



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Chino Basin / OBMP Coalition
Status Report - January 2006

ENERGY/REGULATORY

Southern California Edison General Rate Case

The California Public Utilities Commission has issued a draft decision in Phase I of Southem
California Edison’s General Rate Case (GRC), which determines the revenues SCE is
permitted to collect for distribution and transmission services. The draft decision would
award a total revenue increase of $60 million, which equates to a 0.61% average rate
increase. In their original application, Edison requested a revenue increase of $370 million,
or an average 3.6% increase. The presiding administrative law judged rejected most of
Edison's specific revenue increases in the decision.

The CPUC is expected to rule on the draft decision in late February, and the rate increase
would take effect shortly thereafter.

The CPUC is also considering Phase II of the GRC, which determines how revenues will be
collected from various customer classes, as well has rate design issues. Parties submitted
intervenor testimony on January 20" and parties have begun to hold settiement conferences
in hopes of avoiding full litigation of the case. If a settlement is not reached, a decision is
expected by the Commission by the end of 2006.

Energy Efficiency Funding for Water Conservation Efforts

In response to the California Energy Commission’s recently issued Integrated Energy Policy
Report, as well as at the suggestion of the Association of California Water Agencies
(ACWA) and other interested parties, the CPUC is beginning to explore the funding of water
conservation measures through electric utility energy efficiency programs. The proposed
change recognizes the significant energy savings associated with urban water conservation
efforts. Nearly 20% of energy usage in California is associated with water supply treatment
and delivery.

Beginning in February, the utilities and other interested parties, including The Dolphin Group
(on behalf of CBC), will meet to formulate policy suggestions to facilitate this expansion of
energy efficiency offerings. The group hopes to complete their recommendation by October
2006.

Utility energy efficiency programs are funded through a surcharge on all utility customers,
and are designed to reduce demand on the system and mitigate capacity constraints through a
variety of rebate and education programs. Under current practice only water heaters are
eligible for funding.




54

BOND ACTIVITY

On January 5, Governor Schwarzenegger unveiled his $222 billion Strategic Growth Plan to
invest in California’s infrastructure. The plan calls for two major bond initiatives in 2006
and 2010 to be considered for approval by the voters, and aims to invest in four specific
areas.

o Transportation/Air Quality $107 billien
o Education $59.9 billion
o Public Safety/Court System $20.7 billion
o Flood Control/Water Supply $35 billion (39 billion in G.O. bonds)

The sources of funding include a mix of general obligation bonds ($68 billion), bonds which
have already been authorized (e.g. Proposition 42), federal assistance, local sources and new
user fees. One of the more controversial components is the Water Resources Investment
Fund (WRIF). The Administration seeks to implement the following fee schedule for all
water consumers to raise $5 billion for the WRIF:

Lifetime Billing Customers $0
Single-Family Residence $3
Multiple Family Connection $10
Commercial 33
Industrial $10
Agricultural (<9 acres) $3
Agricultural (<180 acres) 36
Agricultural (>180 acres) $10

Roughly two-thirds of these funds would be earmarked to regional integrated watershed
management programs and other Jocal projects, with the remaining funds to be used for
statewide projects.

The Governor's plan has been placed into four major pieces of legislation to be considered
by the Assembly and the Senate. The various policy committees recently began considering
the specifics of the measures. A conference committee of three Senators and three
Assemblymembers has already.been appointed to consider the policy recommendations of
the various committees and formulate a proposal for final consideration by the Legislature.

Although the Governor and the Legislature are hopeful to have the plan considered by voters
in the June Primary Election, deliberations may force consideration to all or part of the
program to November.



Flood Protection and Water Supply Plan

The Administration plan targets two specific-areas fori

water managcment.

"The $6 billion flood management plan w
bonds, with $0.5 billion coming from the
Additionally, the administration’s plans i
and facilities, with the monies raised from the following sources:

ould be require $2.5 billion in general obligation
local sources and $3 billion from federal sources.
dentifies $29 billion in water management programs

nvestment: flood management and

State $6.5 billion
Federal $2 billion

Local $15.5 billion

WRIF %5 billion
TOTAL $29 billion

The state funds would be raised through two general obl
$4.5 billion in 2010. The WRIF is intended to provide funds fo

maintenance of projects completed under the plan,

The plan calls for investment in a v
on integrated watershed mana
. following allocation of waters

ariety of wate
t projects. The current language of the p
hed management funds through 2010:

igation bonds, $2 billion in 2006 and
r ongoing operation and

r supply projects, with a special emphasis
lan calls for the

North Coast $135 million
San Francisco Bay $441 million
Central Coast $183 million
LA/Ventura $660 million
Santa Ana River $363 million
San Diego $294 million
Sacramento River $243 million
San Joaguin River $198 million
Tulare Lake $204 million
Lahontan $145,5 million
Colorado River Basin ~ $133.5 million
TOTAL $3 Billion




96

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

The Dolphin Group recently submitted two draft legislative proposals to legislative counsel
for possible introduction in 2006. The draft proposals are related to additional biogas net
metering program improvements and to remove barriers to the development of renewable
energy resources by water and wastewater agencies.

INTER-AGENCY DIGESTER WORKING GROUP

The IDWG held its second meeting in late January to discuss developments and issues
related to encouraging digester technology expansion in California. The group is facilitated
by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) and the Dolphin Group and includes
representatives of key state and federal environmental, energy ard resource agencies as well
as private industry groups. Martha Davis represents IEUA on the panel.

The working group discussed a number of key emerging issues including the recently
released draft Climate Action Team report and the role digesters can play in reducing
greenhouse gas emissions in California. The groups also discussed water quality permitting

barriers and established a sub-group to formulate new energy incentives for biogas digesters.




\ Inland Empire

UTILITIES AGENGY
Date: February 15, 2006
To: ‘ Honorable Board of DAirectors
Through: Public, Legistative Affairs & Water Resources Committee {2/8/06)
From: Richard W. Atwater
Chief Bxecutive Officer/General Manager
Submitted by: Martha Davii&\}\f{) "
Executive Manager of Policy Development
Subjecti January Legislative Report from A gricultural Resources
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.
BACKGROUND
Dave Weiman provides a monthly report on his federal activities on behalf of [EUA.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

RW A:MD:jbs
GAboard-rec\2006\16638 January Leg Report from Ag Resources

G



THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



A gricultural ALesources

635 Maryland Avenue, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20002-5811
(202) 546-5115
(202) 546-4472-fax

ggx_‘esgurcss@erols.com

January 26, 2006

Legislative Report

TO: Richard W. Atwater ,
General Manager, Inland Empire(Utility Agency

FR: David M. Weiman
Agricultural Resources
LEGISLATIVE REPRESE

| _ S'U: Legislative Report, January 2006

® Second Session, 109" Congress

° Energy Commitice, Recycling and Desalination Policy, Oversight Hearings
Being Scheduled

® Colorado River, Shortage Allocation Negotintions

e Perchlorate — EPA and DOD Issue New Guidance

o IEUA Working Partners

Second Session, 109" Congress. The Senate reconvened on January 18, exclusively to hold
hearings on the Supreme Court nomination. The House reconvenes on January 31. That
evening, the President will present his “State of the Union” to a joint-session of the Congress.
That speech represents the defacto “start” of every session. The following Monday, February 6,
the Administration will send up its proposed budget for the next fiscal year. Every Department,
agency and program will present its recommendations for each line item in the budget.
Additionally, both the House and Senate will propose major changes in their institutional rules —
and it may touch everything from Member ethics, restrictions on former members and senior
staff, budgeting and lobby rules. The House GOP will select & new Majority Leader, the number
~ two position in their caucus and “may"” address and consider other changes in their leadership.




10!

Energy Committee and Water Recycling, Desalination Policy — Policy Oversight Hearings.
As previously reported, last year the Senate Energy Committee initiated a bi-partisan review of
Title XVI, in large part because of program opposition by the Interior Department and the Bureau
of Reclamation . The Committee, working with the Water Subcommittee in the House, asked the
Congressional Research Service (CRS) to undertake a program review. It’s final report is
overdue and remains pending. Apparently, the Bureau of Reclamation has been less than
forthcoming and cooperative and this is causing some of the delay, according to the Energy
Committee staff, The Committee is now telling us that the comprehensive oversight hearing
will occur on February 28, but the date has not been formally announced nor has the hearing been
“noticed.” IBUA and others are already preparing for those hearings, and providing various
kinds of background and programmatic information to the committee.

Colorado River - Shortage Allocation Negotiations. Secretary Norton, Assistant Secretary
Limbaugh, Commissioner Keys and the Interior Deparment and the Bureau of Reclamation
continue to publicly challenge MWD, the State of California, Southern California water users
and their Colorado River partners to adopt “shortage aliocations™ for the Colorado River.
Meetings and discussions are on-going. As noted last month, Interior wants no mention or
disccusion of Title XVI as a means to stretch local supplies thtoughout the Basin.

Perchiorate. EPA announced a new “Guidance” policy in late January and DOD concurrently
revised its perchlorate policies. EPA conformed its 4-18ppb Guidance to the National Academy
of Sciences recommended 24.5ppb. Senators Boxer and Feinstein have both challenged the new
policy. Senator Boxer called it “woefully inadequate.” Feinstein snnounced that she would be
asking EPA to “reconsider” its decision. Senator Feinstein has also revised her perchlorate
cleanup bill and is getting ready to introduce it. -

JEUA Continues to Work With Various Partners. On an on-going basis in Washington,

IBUA continues to work with:
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD)

Orange County Water District (OCWD)
Cucamonga Valley Water District (CYWD)
Western Municipal Water District

Chino Basin Watermaster

a.

b. Milk Producer’s Council (MPC)

c. Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWFA)
d. Water Environment Federation (WEF)

e. Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)
f. WateReuse Association

g CALStart

h.

i,

j-

k.




Inland Empire
UFILITIES AGENCY

Date: February 15, 2006

To: o Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs & Water Resources Committee (2/8/06)
From: Richard W. Atwater WB

Chief Executive Offi¢er/General Manager
Submitted by: Martha Davis

Executive Manager of Policy Development
Subject: January Legislative Report from Copeland and Associates
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

_BACKGROUND
Letitia White provides 2 monthly report on their federal activities on behalf of IEUA.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.
IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

RWAMD:jbs .
Giboard-rec\2006\06037 January Leg Report from Copeland and Associales

101




10z

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



O
Copeland Lowery Jacquez Dentom7W hite
Specializing in Government Relations
Memorandum
TO: Rich Atwater and Martha Davis

FROM: Letitia White and Heather McNatt
Copeland Lowery Jacquez Denton & White

DATE: January 27, 2006

RIE: Monthly Legislative Report

CLJ is eager to kick off another year with IEUA. We are in the process of
updating IEUA’s materials for the Bureau of Reclamation appropriations request in the
Energy and Water Appropriations bill and are hopeful that we will be able to craft a
potential request in the Agriculture Appropriations bill. We conlinue to work with Dave
Weiman to determine how IEUA may be able to benefit from the upcoming Farm Bill
reauthorization. '

_ Aside from the Alito hearings in the Senate, Capito! Hill has been very quiet this
January. Bveryone in Washington is eagerly anticipating the President’s State of the
Union Address on January 31% and the release of the White House’s budget the first week
of February. The President’s budget officially kicks off the FY "07 Appropriations cycle.

FY (7 Appropriations Preview

In the wake of the ethics scandals that have been in the news lately, thereis a
great deal of talk about reforming the appropriations process when Congress returns to
work. It is too early to tell exactly what form the reforms, if enacted, would take. That
having been said, it is our assumption that appropriations earmarks.will undergo more
scrutiny and become harder to obtain. We wil! continue to monitor the developments on
appropriations reform and keep you posted.

Budget Reconciliation

Ore of the first items the House is expected to consider is final passage of the
Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, The Senate changed several provisions before passing the
package 51 to 50, with Vice President Cheney casting the tie-breaking vote, on December
21%. The final package will result in $39.7 billion in savings in mandatory spending
programs. The vote was very contentious in the House the first time it was passed, and
" we expect this (o be another close cail. If it passes the House again, it will go to the
President for his signature. :

Suite 800 525 Ninth Street, NW » Washington, DC 20004 o 202-347-5990 ¢ Fax 202-341-5941

1063



104

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Infand Empire

UTILITIES AGERGY

Date: February 15, 2006
To; The Honorable Board of Directors
From: Richard W. Atwater

Chief Executive Officer/General Manager
Submitted by: Sondra Elrod

Public Information Officer
Subject: Public Outreach and Communications
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

Qutreach/Tours
o February 21, 2006, tour of HQ for LA City public works department
o February 22, 2006, tour of RP-5 and Renewable Energy Facility for National
Corn Growers Association 9:30am

e February 22, 20006, tour of IERCF for LA County Sanitation District Board of
Directors

Calendar of Upcoming Events

[

February 22, Leadership Breakfast, Event Room, 7:30am

March 7, 2006, Fontana Arbor Day 10am to 1pm Mary Vagel Nature Museum
March 7, 2006, “Inland Empire Legislative Reception” in Sacramernto, 5pm to
Tpm

March 18, 2006, Fontana Earth Day, 10am to 2Zpm Mary Vagel Nature
Museum

March 20, 2006, IEUA hosted Special District dinner at Panda Inn, Ontario,
6pm

March 24, 2006, MWD Community Communication Breakfast with Senator
Dutton and Assembly Member Emmerson, time and place TBD

OUTREACH/EDUCATIONAL INLAND VALLEY DAILY BULLETIN
NEWSPAPER CAMPAIGN

February 28, 2006, eight page piece to showcase IEUA, CBWM, CBW(CD, 3
Valleys MWD, Western MWD and MPC.



PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.,

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

106



V. INFORMATION

1. Newspaper Articles




Printed {rom pe.com http:/iwww pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi

1of2

ater board chief opposed to delaying a
July hearing

PERCHLORATE: A firm that once operated a Rialto facility is accused of polluting area
wells.

12:10 AM PST on Thursday, January 19, 2006
By JENNIFER BOWLES / The Press-Enterprise

LOMA LINDA - The region's chief water-quality regulator signaled Wednesday that she would refuse to
delay a July hearing for a company accused of being a key contributor to perchlorate contamination that has
closed 20 drinking-water wells in the San Bernardino Valley.

Carole Beswick, chairwoman of the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board, said she would
decide Monday after Emhart Industries Inc. has a chance to refine its plan to determine the company's role
in the pollution.

"It's sounding like it has no traction," Beswick said of a delay, after hearing board members and the public
argue against it.

Attorneys and consultants for Emhart, a subsidiary of Black & Decker, sought a delay until Oclober, saying
they planned to conduct soil testing and install at least three groundwater wells around its former Rialto
facility that operated in the 1950s.

"We're at a juncture where we believe that cooperation is the right course rather than confrontation," said
Bob Wyatt, an attorney for Emhart, which had argued for the last few years that it is not tied to the
perchlorate contamination,

Representatives for some of the cities affected by the pollution -- Rialto and Colton -- and the water
agencies that serve them, along with the Center for Community Action and Environmental Justice, said
Emhart's recently unveiled investigation plan lacked an aggressive strategy.

They urged the board to keep the hearing date. Such a hearing is similar to a court trial and would include
evidence, testimony and board members acting as the judge and ruling on what the company must do.

Embhart has fought previous orders from the board in court. The company can appeal to the state water
board if the regional panel rules against it.

"It is an environmental and financial crisis in Rialto," said Scott Sommer, an attorney for the city.

"} can't underscore the importance of this to Rialto to keep this process moving."

1607

F o=

1/23/2006 1:25 PM



Printed from pe.com http://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi

In the 1950s, Emhart's predecessor company, West Coast Loading, made explosive cartridges, photoflash
cartridges, flares and other incendiary devices containing perchlorate.

The underground plume of perchlorate has since stretched several miles from the 160-acre industrial site
where Embhart and others later operated.

Studies have shown that perchlorate can impair the thyroid, which regulates metabolism and produces
hormones essential for brain and bone development in fetuses and newborns.

Goodrich Corp., the other company accused of being a major pollution contributor, gave $4 million to the
water agencies to treat contaminated wells and reached a settlement with the board in November to drill up
to nine test wells.

Reach Jennifer Bowles at 951-368-9548 or jbowles@pe.com

Online at:
hitp://www.pe.com/digitalextra/environment/perchlorate/vt_stories/PE_News_Local_P_perch19,182e21db.htmi

Zof2 1/23/2006 1:25 PM




Printed from pe.com http:/fwww.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi

Feinstein demands studies

on perchlorate

ilitary perform

DISPUTE: The Pentagon says there is no need for more research on the rocket-fuel
chemical.

11:29 PM PST on Tuesday, Jannary 10, 2606
By DAVID DANELSKI / The Press-Enterprise

A California senator demanded Tuesday that the military make good on a congressional directive to
conduct a major health study on a rocket-fuel chemical found in water and food consumed by millions of
Americans.

Congress, in a 2003 defense authorization bill, required an independent study on how perchlorate
contamination has affected large numbers of people. The study has not been done.

Defense officials say the study is no longer needed because others have completed or are pursuing similar
research.

Sen. Dianne Feinstein, a Democrat, disagrees.

"By shirking responsibility for performing thorough and exhaustive studies on the impact of perchlorate,
the Defense Department is putting the health of thousands of Americans at risk,” Feinstein wrote Tuesday
in letter to Defense Secretary Donald Rumsfeld.

A Defense Department spokeswoman said she had no immediate comment because Rumsfeld had not
reviewed the letter.

Perchlorate is a chemical used in rocket fuel and munitions. Industrial spills and leaks have contaminated
water supplies across the nation, including the Colorado River and several Inland groundwater basins. It
also has been found in lettuce, milk and other produce.

In sufficient amounts, it can disrupt the thyroid gland's ability to make hormones that fetuses and infants
need for brain and nerve development.

In September, Kenneth Krieg, an undersecretary of defense, argued in letters to Senate and House armed
services committees that Congress' intent had been satisfied.

Since the 2003 authorization bill, which gave the Defense Department directives for the 2004 fiscal year,
perchlorate science has been reviewed by the National Academy of Sciences.

The academy's review included two large, population-based studies in California, Krieg wrote. One focused

,,,,, 168

1of2 1/23/2006 1:26 PM




Printed from pe.com hitp://www.pe.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi

1
IRy

2of 2”_

on Redlands-area residents, and the other compared health information statewide. The federal Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention is pursuing additional research, Krieg wrote.

Lockheed Martin Corp., sponsored the studies in California. The company is embroiled in a lawsuit filed by
several Redlands-area residents who contend that perchlorate from a former Lockheed rocket factory in
Mentone contributed {o their illnesses. The research found no link between perchlorate and the residents’
ailments.

Gary Praglin, an attorney for the residents, said the studies cannot be seen as independent because of the
company's financial stake in the lawsuit's outcome.

In her letter, Feinstein noted that the National Academy of Sciences committee called for more research to
determine how perchlorate affects the most vulnerable groups, such as low-birth-weight babies.

"*The Department of Defense still must fulfill its obligations and complete thorough and exhaustive studies
on the true health impact of perchlorate,” she wrote.

Reach David Danelski at (951) 368-9471 or ddanelski@pe.com

Cnline at;
hitp:/fwww.pe.com/digitalextra/environment/perchlorate/vt_stories/PE_News_Local _D_perch11.13030a23.html

1/23/2006 1:26 PM




Print Article Page 1 of 2

Article Last Updated: 1/13/2006 08:55 PM

Recycled water an idea to plug prices

By Kelly Raybumn, Staff Writer
Intand Valley Daily Bulletin

FONTANA - This city of roughiy 160,000 generates more than 11.5 million gallons of recycled water every day.
None of it is used,
Not locaily, anyway. 1t flows into the Santa Ana River in Crange County.

Using the recycled water for such things as park Irrigation, city officials say, could mean less need for the privately owned Fontana
Water Company to bulld new water-treatment infrastructure - and It could mean a lower water rate for customers.

The city made that case Thursday, the fourth day of hearings over whether the company will be allowed a major rate increase.
The judge wouldn't have any of it. Not now, anyway.

In what water company consuitant Rick Ruiz characterized as the most dramatic portion of the hearings thus far, Administrative
Law Judge Robert Barnett said testimony from the city's public works director Curtis Aaron was not relevant to the current rate
case,

Customers of the Fontana Water Company - a division of the San Gabriel Valley Water Company - pay $1.54 per 100 cubic feet of
water, which is among the region's highest.

The company is asking for an increase of more than 25 percent over three years.
The case will ultimately be decided by the California Public Utilities Commission.
Thursday, with Curtis under oath, Barnett questioned why testimony on recycled water was relevant.

"We've got a rate case, I've got to have a decision out by July. And here we have something ... that Is three years down the road,
if it comes® to frultion at all, Barnett said, Barnett 5aid there was little he could do at present to push the company and the city
toward a deal on using recycled water,

“If you're saylng you want a statement that it would be nice to do,” he said, "I'll put a statement in the {deciston}. . . that it wouid
be nice to do."

The water company serves most of the city of Fontana and some areas surrounding it, Including the city's unincorporated sphere of
influence and smal! poriions of Rancho Cucamenga and Riatto.

The city Is 8 member of the Inland Empire Utllity Agency’s Regional Sewage pregram and the city, not the company, has first right
to use the treated water.

At issue, however, are state public utitities guidelines restricting what is known as service duplication: If the city were to build the
infrastructure to use the recycled water, the company couid take legal action against it.

City officials say the Fontana Water Company has stalled, but General Manager Michael McGraw sald the onus is on the city to
come up with a plan for recycled water.

"It's thelr water," he said.

The city is developing a Recycled Water Master Plan with the help of Ontario-based consultant Camp Dresser & McKee Inc. That
plan should be finished in the next month or so.

Mayor Mark Nuaimi sald he had hoped it would be done in advance of the hearings.
"We're pretly frustrated that is wasn't,” said Nuaimi, "because that would have been our testimeny.”

1il
hitp://www.dailybulletin.com/portlet/article/html/fragments/print_article.jsp?article=34011... 1/16/2606




Print Article Page 2 of 2

Nonetheless, Aaron and Ken MacVey, an attorney representing the city, both downplayed the judge's comments Thursday.
MacVey said Aaron's testimony was entered largely "to put the issue on the radar screen.”

He said once the city completes the plan for recycled water, it's likely that it will ask the PUC for help in ensuring the recycled
water can be used.

Hearings on the rate case, meantime, continue next week in San Francisco,

"y

Lia

http://www.dailybulletin.com/portlet/article/html/fragments/print_article.jsp?article=34011... 1/16/2006




Print Article Page 1 of 1

Articte Last Updated: 1/14/2006 12:15 AM

Lake Arrowhead water dispute settied

Lake Arrowhead use restricted
Andrew Siiva, Staff Writer
San Bernardino County Sun

LAKE ARROWHMEAD -- The water-rights dispute that could have made lake water off Hmits for drinking and landscaping was settled
by the state water board Friday, provided no one appeals,

Use of the take water will be strictly limited In future years, but the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District doesn't have to
worry that it will have to go out and find budget-busting alternatives to meet all its customers' needs.

The State Water Resources Control Board approved an order on a 3-0 vote reguiring the district to cut its water use to 1,566 acre-
feel a year starting in 2008, pay & $112,000 fine for diversions deemed fllegal and come up with a pian in 60 days for meeting the
reduction target.

' ' This was just s0 much better than what we feared we might get,” sald Mary Ann Dickinson, a recently elected board member of
the Lake Arrowhead district, which serves about 7,500 homes and businesses. ' “We're delighted the state board did say we had
water rights."

State board member Gerald Secundy recused himself because he's a part-time resident of Lake Arrowhead.
A moratorium on issulng new connectlons alse is imposed until the district meets its target.

" I'm ecstatic over it," said Theodore Heyck, a district board member who brought the original complaint that challenged the
district’s water rights.

The state originally found that the district has no rights to any water in the lake for domestic uses.

In the order adopted Friday, the state agreed that the originat developers of Lake Arrowhead did intend the water to be used for
domestic consumption.

State officials took the population envisioned by those developers, figured out how much water that population of 8,000 would use
and came up with the 1,566 acre-feet as the district’s proper water right,

An acre-foot is about 326,000 gallons or roughly the amount used by two typical urban families in a year.

To meet the goal, water use will have to be cut by about a quarter compared to its draw from the lake of 2,119 acre-feet last year
and 1,822 In 2004.

The district board will meet next week o discuss the order.

Approval of the order means residents won't have to worry about astronomicat water bills that would have resulted from a
prehibition on using lake water for domestic coersumption.

That doesn't mean costs won't increase because the district is aiready reiying partly on expensive imported water to meet any
shortfalt, The district pays $2,750 per acre-foot, the most expensive in the state, and those costs could go higher, Dickinson said.

The district has been working to reduce its reliance on lake water in recent years by drilling wells, working out & deal to get water
imported from Northern California and imposing strict conservation measures, including higher water rates for residents who use
too much water.

The district plans to target outdoor irrigation ia the summer months as a way to cut demand, Dickinson said.

(e

11

http://www.dailybulletin.com/portlet/article/html/fragments/print_article jsp?article=34008... 1/1 6f 2006




11& __

THIS PAGE
HAS
INTENTIONALLY
BEEN LEFT
BLANK
FOR PAGINATION



Tempting fate: Anti-flood mndmg
awash in politics

South state's unity has aided safety projects while capital
region struggles.

By Deb Kollars -- Bee Staff Writer
Published 2:15 am PST Sunday, February 12, 2006 euotos sryan patrick

For many years, the Santa Ana River running through Southeen Callfornia was known as the most dengerous watershed west of the Mississippl. Its
flash floods were legendary and brutal, threatening a rich band of real estate rurning through the heart of Orange County.

Today, this land of citrus and subdivisions Is becoming far safler, thanks to a $1.4 biilion packape of fluod coatrol flxes on the Santa Ana, including a
aew dam In the San Bernarding Mountains, When the fob is finished, It will leave a sharp Imbalance In the state:

Disneyland wilt have twice the flood protection of the Capitol of California.

Crews work on improvements to the 63-year-oid Prado Dam near Corona. The
hetght of the dam is being ralsed to increase flood protection alorg the Santa Ana
River,

The Santa Ana project, pald mostly with federsi dollars, will be done within five
years, It wili provige cilies from Anahelm to Huntington Beach pratection agalnst
rare but dangerous storms that have about a one-In-200 chance ef ocourring every
year.

Meanwhile, Sacramento will continue to carry the distinction of having the greatest
flood risk of any major city in the naticn. Some neighborhoods don't even have 100-
year protectlon. Soiid pians are in motion to reach the 200-year threshold by
making changes at Folsom Dam and strengthening levees. But burdies as wide as
rivers remain, Including securlng the $1 billlon, or more, It will cost, It will be 15 — I
years, by most accounts, before Sacamento has a salety cushion or the Sacrmmento and American rivers akls to that on the Sanl.a Ana,

"there Is a tremendous amount of more wark that needs to be done," said Jason Fansefaw, chlef of public affalrs for the U5, Army Corps of
Engineers Sacramentn district. "We're stlil right at that bare minimum of fload protection.” Members of Sacramento’s congressienal delegation, amid
numerous ingulries, were defensive when asked about north-south safety comparisons. You're talking about different rlvers, different landscapes,
dlfferens times, different players, thelr representatives Insisted, The staff members, instead, wanted to talk about how hard their bosses have
worked to get flood protection doflars during difficuit times |n Washington,

Adriana Surfas, for example, who spoke to The 8ee on behalf of Democratic Rep. Dorls Matsul, polnted out that in California, Sacramento received
the third highest water-reiated allocation from Congress in 2006 at $29.96 milllon. {The Santa Ana Rlver project was first In Hne at $61.65 miltion.
The Oakiand Harbor was second at $48 million.)

On Its face, the $29.96 milllon sounds like a iot. And things would seem to lonk even batter for next year: Last wee¥, Presidert Bush sarmarked
%46.8 miliion in his proposed 2007 federa! budget for flood improvements en the American River, But It Is a long way from covering the $3 billion or
more needed to get Sacramento (o the 200-year goal, said Fansdau and others.

According to Bill Edgar, relired dty manager of Sacramento and a longtlme leader In floud centrol efforts, the Santa Ara fiver has iong edlipsed
Sacramentn In gaining federal funding, thenks to a history of cooperation across three Southern Californla counties and & unifled congresslonal
delegation.

"The Santa Ana project has always been the competition to Sacromento,” Edgar said. "There’s only so much money back in Congress, and we were
afways trying to get our falr share of the ple.” Vic Fazlo, who represented Sacamerto in the House when the Santa Ana project rolied through in
19886, gave It his support. "There was consensus arcund IE," saig Fazio, now a Democratic labbylst In Washington, D.C. "It made sense.”

The same year the Santa Ana River Malnstem Project was approved, Sacramenin was hit with severe flooding. It was a major wake-up calf that the
capitat needed more pratection. For the next 13 years, whiie the Santa Ana projedt was being funded and bullt, Saerementsns were at war over how
to defend against Boods here, The biggest obstacle, according to locat leaders, was the fight over whether to bulld a dam on the American Rlver near
Auburn.

The dam was champloned by Republican Rep. John Doalittle. Many supported It, some for the water storage and recreational potential, others for its
flood control capadty. Others couldn't bear the thought of a dam on a river knawn {or its beauty and whitewater. A compremlse proposal - to build a
"dey™ dam that would only fill with water during a flood event and provide up to 500-year protection - was another slice of the paralyzing debate,

Doolittle refused to support anything but an Auburn dam with water storage. Environmentalists faught it hard, The result: Nothing haggened.,
"Auburn dam gotin the way of everything,” Mayor Heather Fargo sald, recalling how she and other Sacramento teaders went to Washington twice
duilng the 19505 asking for different verslons of 2 dam at Auburn. "We were told no, and then we went back a few years tater and we were told hell
ra,” Fargo sald. Stein Buer, the executive director of the Sacramento Area Fiood Controt Agency, recalled those days with regrat. The city was
?ruwlgg fast. The fowding risks were grave. "Until you have agreement on what you want to bulld,” Buer sakf, "you can't get construction dollars
rom Congress.”

I

i




On the bright side, Buer noted that about $350 itlion has been spent in recent years on levees and cther fixes, pushing most of the community to a
100-yeer level of protection, But meving beyond that point has been etuslve. In 1599, the year Seven Oaks Dam was completed on the Santa Ana,
the fighting {inally ceased when Doolittle and Democratic Rep. Rebert Matsul {who died last year and whose wife, Dorls, tater won election to his
seat} made a ded. They would set aside the debate over an Auburn dam, and push for mere modest steps toward safety: levee Improvements and
upgrades at Folsom Dam,

Their détente broke the logiam In Washington, That year, two projects on Folsoms Dam
totallag more than a half blilion dollars were approved in Congress: one to ralse the dam to
fald more water, and one to modify ILs gates to batter bandie releases durlng times of high
watar. The work on Folsom Dam has been stymied by deslgn problems and Is cheduled to be
done by 2021, asurning the blg checks get written at the federal, state and iocal bvels,
Fanselau sald. The dam work, along with $263 million worth of spproved levee improvements,
should bring Sacramento 200-year protection.

While Sacramento is Just starting on the fixes, Southern California Is wrapping up the
massive flood safety package on the Santa Ana River. At $1.4 blitien ang climbing, the project
fias Bree maln parts;

* The new Seven Gaks Dam, finished seven years ago. Built as a "dry” dam, the walied-
off space in the canyon Is filled anly when the river gets dangerous. Last winter, Seven
Qaks got Its first test run when It captured heavy ralns and helped prevent serlous
flocting,

* Channel lmprovements - many of them Involving finlag the river In concrete and rock -to stop the water from escaping the banks.

* A 30-foot height Increase on the 65-year-oid Prado Dam near Corona, When done within the next five years, It will increase space In the
reservelir gndd provkie 190-year protection to communitles downstream.

EF you're wsed to Northern Catiforala®s wide deep rivers, a visit to the Santa Ana can be something of & letdows, Like other rivers In the desert-like
environment of interlor Southern Callfornia, the Santa Ara Is but a trickle many months of the year. But when heavy rains come, the Santa Ana can
become @ tarrent raglng down out of the mountalns.

The river mipkes ks way across three countles - 5an Bemardine, Riverside and Orange - on its Joutney to the Pagific, After severe flood!ng in 1938,
the Prodo Dam was bullt to protect the growing urban reglon. In 1963, another hig flood came, ralsing awareness that even more protection was
needed, The three alfected countles banded together to find a solution, led by Crange County, home b most of the threatened pecgle and
propertles, It took years to work out the eavironrmeatal, selsmic and financial controversles.

In an unusual alliance, water Interests in the thirsty region Jolned with those worriad about Booding to design a project with water supply benefks,
sald Dasiel Cozad, genarl manager of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority, a consortium of weter agendes, In the end, the sizeable
Southern Californla defegation came together behind the project, Cozad said, "To gat federal dotlars, It takes everybody,” he sald. Back on the East
Coast, It was a hard seli, and the coaliicn of supporters pulled cut all the stops.

They stressed that 2 mitlion peeple and 560,000 homes were atrisk. Damages from a flood could readh $9 billion, Some areas would be under 6 feet
of water If tlooded; Disneyiand was looking, on average, at 3-foot depths, "We told them, "We don't think you want Minnle Mouse ang Mickey Mouse
to go under,™ recalled Herbert Nakasone, director and chlef engineer for public works and flood contred In Qrange County, "We had to use whatever
we thought was effective.”

They also had an Impressive chip in thelr pocket: Orange Gounty, which was picking 1p most of the local share, had $150 million saved for the
projed. Brian Mogre, who untlt recently was the deputy district engineer for projedt management In the Corps of Englneers' Los Angetes district, sald
the tri-county support was remarkable.

"This was the first tiree the corps sigaed on with muitiple counties,” Moere said. "It showed the broad support and warked tremendously tn its favor,”
Moare has an extra job now. He Is also stepping In as deputy district engineer for project management for the Corps of Englaeers In Sacramento
untlk the slot is permanently filled. He was brought north to help speed aiong Sacramento’s Alood projects, given his Santa Ana experience. He sees
great parallels between the two situations: "It was very political, Just like it s here.”

Mocre s encouraged by what he has found In Sacrameatn: projects approved and moving aleng arsd a spirt of cooperation s local, state and federal
officlals figure out how to get the wark done and paid for. In the meantime, ocal flood control experts quietly hope the monster storm that could be
ler Gur future doesr't hit,

About the writer:

®  The Bee's Deb Kollars can be reached at {918) 321-1098 or diollars@spches,com.




ilk Producers Council

3370 SCHAEFER AVE. SUITE A - CHINO, CA 91710 - (909) 628-6018 - Fax (90%) 591-7328
E-mail: mpciiomithproducers. vy
DATE: February 10, 2006 NO. OF PAGES 2
TO DIRECTORS & MEMBERS FROM N.lth'm

M.

CHICAGO MERCANTILE EXCHANGE CHICAGO BUTTER GRADE A NON-FAT POWDER

40 Ib. Block --  (-5.0075) -~ $1.2325 AA - (-5.0475)- $1.2100 Calif. Weekly Average Price

500 Ib. Barrel - (-$.0073) -- §1.2025 Week Ending:  Price  Volume
January 27 $.8883 19,663,633

Weekly Average Weekly Average February 3 $.9123 13,263,029

40 lb. Block -~ ($1.2383) AA Butter §1.2145

JOD lb Bam,l - (Sl 7]0(})

CHELESE PRICES REMAIN WEAK...At the Cinmgo Mexcaniile Exch'mg,e (CMIZ) this week 40 Ib. block
prices decreased $.0075 with no sales. Overall demand remains light though spot interest has increased. 1t is
reported that inventories continue to accumulate except in the West, where supplies are in better balance. Cheese
production remains seasonally heavy.

BUTTER PRICES SPIRAL DOWNWARD...At the CME, Grade AA butter prices decreased $.0475 in light
trading. The cash butter market remains weak. The CME cash butter price has declined more than $0.20 since
the first of the year and is the lowest since November 2003. Cream supplies remain plentiful from coast to coast.
It is reported that in most instances, butter production is surpassing demand, thus surplus butter is clearing
inventory programs. Overall butter demand is slower and fair at best.

FRED DOUMA’S PRICE PROJECTIONS...
Feb. 10: Quota ewt. $12.97  Overbase cwt.  $11.27  Cls. 4a ewt. $10.85 Cls. 4b cwt. $11.37

DAIRY INSTITUTE PETITIONS TO SLASH PRODUCER PRICES...(By Geoffiey Vanden Henvel) Acting
primarily on behalf of its cheesemaker members, the Dairy Institute of California (DI) submitted a petition this
week to the California Department of Food and Agriculture (CDFA) for a hearing to consider a major reduction
in the 4b cheese milk price. DI claims that California producers are continuing to increase production and
therefore it is the state’s responsibility to encourage the construction of more cheese plants by returning to the
cheap milk policies of the past. Milk Producers Council strongly opposes this approach. For one thing, the
California 4b cheese milk price is already consistently lower than the Federal Order Class 11T price. For the last
13 months, California cheesemakers have enjoyed a regulated price that has averaged $0.38 per cwt. lower than
their regulated competition in Federal Orders. As for the California cheesemakers’ unregulated competition in
Idaho and New Mexico, they will simply lower their producer price to match whatever reductions the DI could
convince CDFA to give them.

The cheap milk policies of the past simply will not work. The increase in production in California and the entire
West has been fueled by favorable general milk prices over the past couple of years. High prices are the market
signals to increase production. Those prices are now dropping quite significantly. Dairymen are not missing
those signals. Furthermore, it has become very clear that the dairy industry is no longer viewed by the California
public, even the agriculture friendly public of the Central Valley, as a benign environmental presence in the
community. Consequently, stiff environmental regulations on new and expanded production facilities are being
enforced, this in addition to higher costs for just about everything else, is making California a very expensive
place for producers to do business. Now is no time to return to the cheap milk policies of the past. Secretary
A.G. Kawamura will be making a decision on whether to call a hearing during this next week or two. You can
contact the Department with your thoughts by sending e-mail to dairy(@cdfa.ca.gov.

NATHAN DEBOOM LEAVES MPC...After 7 years as Assistant Manager, and a short time as General
Manager, Nathan De Boom is off to greener pastures. An excellent job opportunity involving environmental

117




1158

issues and permitting activities for various businesses and entities came Nathan’s way. Nathan decided that this
was a better opportunity for him in the long term. His last day at MPC will be Wednesday, February 15, 2006.
The MPC Board extends its best wishes and good luck to Nathan as he pursues these new challenges. Nathan has
performed his job as General Manager well, and we will certainly miss him as we transition to another Manager.

WELCOME BILL VAN DAM...Welcome Bill Van Dam from Idaho as interim Manager of Milk Producers
Council effective Monday, February 13th. Bill is an "old shoe" to the dairy industry, having vast experiernce at
many different jobs and positions in our industry. Bill and the Board of MPC have come to terms on an interim
manager position and we look forward to an excelient and fruitful relationship together.

BUSH PROPOSES MILK TAX?...Earlier this week, President Bush released his Fiscal Year 2007 budget
proposal for the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). Whiie he does call for increased spending for
biosecurity projects, most farm programs take a hit. In addition, dairy producers and sugar processors are being
asked to pay an assessment, For dairy it amounts to a $0.03 per cwt. tax on all milk produced. Fora 1000 cow
dairy facility that translates into a cost of about $6000 per year or about $6 per cow, for an estimated savings of
$578 million over ten years. The proposal also calis for a 5% reduction spending on all farm payment programs
including dairy and requires the dairy-price program to minimize expenditures.

DECISIVE™ SEMEN TO BE MARKETED BY ALTA GENETICS...Monsanto announced that Alta
Genetics, a leader in supplying high-quality dairy cattle semen backed by reliable genetic and performance
testing, has been selected to market Decisive™ semen for Advanced Gender Selection. “Decisive™ improves the
probability from 50% to 85% that a cow will have a heifer calf, and Alta’s Advantage™ progeny testing program
offers producers top-tier genetics and accurate sire proof information,” said Kevin Holloway of Monsanto Dairy,
“The combination will allow producers to increase the rate of genetic improvement in their herds.”

CALIFORNIA CHEESE PRODUCTION SETS NEW RECORD...California's growing cheese production
passed the two billion-1b mark, reaching a record 2.14 billion Ibs in 2005, according to a preliminary report by the
California Department of Food and Agriculture (CDFA). The state's cheese production grew by 7.1% last year,
nearly three times the rate of cheese production growth reported nationally (2.6%) by the USDA. Cheese
production in California has more than doubled over the past decade, from 1.04 billion Ibs in 1996, as the state
rapidly approaches the leadership position for cheese production nationwide. California milk production aiso
reached a record high in 2005, totaling 37.5 billion lbs, a 3% increase over 2004, according to CDFA. California
is the nation's leading milk producer and nearly half of California's milk supply goes to cheese production.

BRAZILIAN VETERINARIAN NAMED TULARE CO. DAIRY ADVISOR... Debora Bacon, a native of
Brazil and veterinarian who holds a master’s degree in dairy science, has been named the UC Cooperative
Extension dairy farm advisor for Tulare County. Bacon’s appointment comes at a time when environmental rules
covering air and water are being tightened and when large animal operations are coming under increasing
scrutiny in an area where the human population is swelling as well. Bacon said she intends to spend time
becoming familiar with regulations related to air and water quality. “Regulations are changing quickly,” she said.
“Understanding the impact of these regulations can be challenging and one of my priorities will be ensuring that
local farmers have the necessary information to comply with these regulations.”

45 JAPAN COWS SUSPECTED OF HAVING MAD COW...Forty-five cows at a farm in northern Japan are
suspected of having mad cow disease and will be destroyed, officials said. The cows are from a farm on the
northern island of Hokkaido where a cow died last month of the disease - Japan's 22nd mad cow case. The
announcement came a month after Japan halted all imports of U.S. beef following the discovery of backbones ina
shipment of American veal, The bones are deemed to be at risk of mad cow disease and are banned under a deal
that reopened the Japanese market to U.S. beef in December. The recent import halt was a harsh turnaround for
the U.S. beef business in Japan.




